University of Montana

ScholarWorks at University of Montana

Graduate Student Theses, Dissertations, & Professional Papers

Graduate School

1971

The reliability and validity of descriptions of misarticulated sounds according to several articulatory features

Elaine M. Heaton The University of Montana

Follow this and additional works at: https://scholarworks.umt.edu/etd Let us know how access to this document benefits you.

Recommended Citation

Heaton, Elaine M., "The reliability and validity of descriptions of misarticulated sounds according to several articulatory features" (1971). *Graduate Student Theses, Dissertations, & Professional Papers.* 8028.

https://scholarworks.umt.edu/etd/8028

This Thesis is brought to you for free and open access by the Graduate School at ScholarWorks at University of Montana. It has been accepted for inclusion in Graduate Student Theses, Dissertations, & Professional Papers by an authorized administrator of ScholarWorks at University of Montana. For more information, please contact scholarworks@mso.umt.edu.

THE RELIABILITY AND VALIDITY OF DESCRIPTIONS OF

MISARTICULATED SOUNDS ACCORDING TO SEVERAL

ARTICULATORY FEATURES

by

Elaine M. Heaton

Licentiate of the College of Speech Therapists, England 1964

Presented in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of

Master of Arts

UNIVERSITY OF MONTANA

1971

Approved-b

Chairman, Board of Examiners

Graduate School Dean,

Date

Reproduced with permission of the copyright owner. Further reproduction prohibited without permission.

UMI Number: EP38829

All rights reserved

INFORMATION TO ALL USERS The quality of this reproduction is dependent upon the quality of the copy submitted.

In the unlikely event that the author did not send a complete manuscript and there are missing pages, these will be noted. Also, if material had to be removed, a note will indicate the deletion.



UMI EP38829

Published by ProQuest LLC (2013). Copyright in the Dissertation held by the Author.

Microform Edition © ProQuest LLC. All rights reserved. This work is protected against unauthorized copying under Title 17, United States Code



ProQuest LLC. 789 East Eisenhower Parkway P.O. Box 1346 Ann Arbor, MI 48106 - 1346

Reproduced with permission of the copyright owner. Further reproduction prohibited without permission.

Reproduced with permission of the copyright owner. Further reproduction prohibited without permission.

.

The writer wishes to express her special appreciation to Dr. Evan P. Jordan whose guidance and assistance were invaluable.

The writer wishes, further, to express her appreciation to the following members of the Genrose Provincial General Hospital, Edmonton, Alberta:

The Executive Director, Dr. J.E. Bradley and the members of the Research Committee for allowing the hospital facilities to be used for the study.

The Director, R.L. Malone Ph.D., and staff of the department of Speech Pathology and Audiology for suggesting suitable speakers for the study.

The Radiographer, Mr. W. Clarke, and staff of the Radiology Department for their enthusiastic assistance in filming the speakers for the study, and their patience in experimenting with the numerous combinations of possible techniques.

In addition, Mr. K. Noden of the Northern Alberta Institute of Technology provided essential information regarding levels of radiation, the Edmonton Public School Board generously loaned some equipment, and Mr. W. Peace of Instructional Materials, University of Montana assisted in editing the final videotapes.

Grateful appreciation is also extended to the graduate students who acted as judges for the study and to the numerous others who assisted in the analysis of the data.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Chapter	r	Page
1.	INTRODUCTION	1
	REVIEW OF THE LITERATURE	3
	Distinctive Features X-ray Studies Statement of the Problem	3 6 7
2.	PROCEDURE	9
	STIMULUS MATERIAL	10
	SPEAKERS SELECTED FOR STUDY	11
	PHYSICAL SETUP	12
	PERSONNEL AND SAFETY CONSIDERATIONS	14
	PHONES SELECTED FOR STUDY	15
	ARTICULATORY PHONETIC FEATURES USED	16
	RELIABILITY AND VALIDITY	16
	TRAINING SESSION	18
	TRANSCRIPTION OF JUDGMENTS	18
	SUMMARY	19
3.	RESULTS AND DISCUSSION	21
	RELIABILITY	22
	FeaturePhone	24 28
	VALIDITY	⁻ 32
	Feature Phone Order	32 39 41
	INFERENCES FROM THE STUDY	42
4.	SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS	46

ł

REFERENCES	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	49
APPENDIX A		52
APPENDIX B		58
APPENDIX C	•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	67
APPENDIX D		76

,

•

-

,

Reproduced with permission of the copyright owner. Further reproduction prohibited without permission.

LIST OF TABLES

•

.

Table		Page
1.	Reliability According to Feature. Means of Scale Value Discrepancies for Each Judge Over all Phones	25
2.	Reliability According to Phone. Means of Scale Value Discrepancies for Each Judge Over all Features	29
3.	Validity According to Feature. Means of Scale Value Discrepancies for Each Judge Over all Phones and Order of Presentation of the Experimental Tapes	33
4.	Validity According to Phone. Means of Scale Value Discrepancies for Each Judge Over all Features and Order of Presentation of the Experimental Tapes	34
5.	Validity According to Order. Means of Scale Value Discrepancies for Each Judge Over all Phones and all Features	35
6.	Scale Values for Each Feature, Each Phone, and Each Mode of Presentation of the Experimental Tapes	59-66
7.	Discrepancies in Scale Points Between the First and Second X-ray Presentation and the First and Second Full Face Presentation	58-75
8.	Intrajudge Discrepancies (in Scale Points) Between the Mean X-ray Judgment and Individual Full Face Judg- ments	77-81

f

Reproduced with permission of the copyright owner. Further reproduction prohibited without permission.

.

., ,

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure		Page
۱.	Physical Setup Showing Position of Speaker, the Head Clamp, the Fluoroscope, the X-ray Source, the Moni- tor, and the Camera for the Videotape Recorder	13
2.	Judges' Articulatory Feature Rating Form Showing Possible Sample Judgments	17
3.	Judges' Articulatory Feature Rating Form Showing the Scale Values Assigned to Each Judgment Possibility	20
4.	Interjudge Mean Discrepancies Comparing the Judgment for the X-ray Mode and the Judgments for the Full Face Mode for the Phone in "Turtle"	23
5.	Reliability According to Feature. Means of Scale Value Discrepancies for Each Judge Over all Phones	26
6.	Reliability According to Phone. Means of Scale Value Discrepancies for Each Judge Over all Features	31
7.	Validity According to Feature. Means of Scale Value Discrepancies for Each Judge Over all Phones and Order of Presentation of the Experimental Tapes	36
8.	Validity According to Phone. Means of Scale Value Discrepancies for Each Judge Over all Features and Order of Presentation of the Experimental Tapes	40
9.	Validity According to Order. Means of Scale Value Discrepancies for Each Judge Over all Phones and all Features	43

Reproduced with permission of the copyright owner. Further reproduction prohibited without permission.

h

CHAPTER I

INTRODUCTION

Articulation can be assessed from three general viewpoints: physiological, acoustical, and perceptual. Clinically, articulatory assessment usually refers specifically to the perceptual system, where the evaluator determines the adequacy of the speaker's production of the phonemic code of the language by listening to a sample of the speaker's speech. This is a judgmental process engaged in by the evaluator (Noll, 1970). It depends on the listener's inferences, presumably drawn from the acoustic clues, concerning the placing and coordinating of the several structures responsible for the articulation of speech sounds in and around the vocal tract of the speaker.

The most frequently used types of articulatory classifying schemes are quite gross and give away a great deal of information. In many of the standardized tests, the evaluator is instructed to mark down whether the subject omitted, distorted, or substituted for the sound under test. Frequently, description of misarticulations is discouraged through the provision of symbols which simply indicate the occurrence of an omission or distortion (Arizona Articulation Proficiency Scale). The evaluator is not given any encouragement to spend time determining the nature of the distortion used, nor to delve more deeply into any elements of the target phone which may be present in the misarticulation. In addition, it is seldom that evaluators make distinctions between the allophones of English phonemes. For example, 'p' and 'p^h are transcribed as /p/, siderable variation between evaluators as to

Reproduced with permission of the copyright owner. Further reproduction prohibited without permission.

which allophones they will regard as correct in specific contexts; it is conceivable that one evaluator might judge a child's aspiration of the 'p' in the /sp/ phoneme cluster, as produced in [sp^hun] as incorrect while another evaluator might score it as correct.

Tests such as the Templin-Darley Tests of Articulation and the Arizona Articulation Proficiency Scale concentrate on sampling the articulation skill of an individual such that his skill may be compared to norms for his age group; the norms serve as a basis for the judgment concerning whether the subject is exhibiting significantly deviant articulation. Several studies have concentrated on establishing normative data for the developmental acquisition of the sounds of the language (Irwin, 1947, 1948; Templin, 1957; Wellman, 1931), but only relatively recently have studies been done on the nature of the speechsound errors occurring in the speech of children. Some of the work in this area has been done by Snow who examined the sound errors of a large number of first-grade children (Snow, 1964). She found many instances where the sound substitutions of children closely corresponded to the listening errors made by adults listening to speech against a background of noise.

It is possible to consider speech sound as a specific bundle of features. A number of schemes have been devised which use sets of distinctive features to describe the bundle of events which occur in the production of a sound. This type of classification system promises a more detailed and comprehensive means of describing sound production, and as such has application in describing the fine elements of sound production for both the normal and the deviant speaker.

REVIEW OF THE LITERATURE

Distinctive Features

The early distinctive feature schemes had a supposedly perceptual Much of the work was based on visual acoustic displays of short base. Researchers such as Cooper (1952) analyzed speech producutterances. tion using a sound spectrograph and patterned playback. The analysis of the spectrographic material led to the use of such terms as "diffuse" and "compact", "grave" and "acute", etc. This terminology was utilized by Jakobson, Fant, and Halle (1952) in a scheme which was comprised of nine binary contrasts of a similar nature to the ones listed above: for example, "voiced" and "nonvoiced". It was felt by the authors that these contrasts were universal, and they were considered to describe perceptual linguistic reality with the greatest economy. These distinctive features should be imposed one upon the other at any particular instance in a speech sample, and the particular cluster of features present formed the phoneme bundle.

A different approach to describing the degrees of perceptual difference between phonemes was carried out by Miller and Nicely (1955). This system used only the contrasts of English and considered the features of voicing, nasality, affrication, duration, and place of articulation. Miller and Nicely concluded that "the perception of any one of these five features is relatively independent of the perception of the others".

In the 1960's the emphasis moved away from the use of spectrographic material as a means of analyzing speech sounds, and interest turned towards articulatory feature schemes. In 1962, Fant extended

the system which he had helped to develop with Jakobson and Halle because he felt that, while it might have application for phonological theory, it was not precise enough to cope with the problems of speechsound recognition. Fant proposed a system which was not dependent on the beginning and termination of phoneme boundaries. He divided the spectrum of the speech utterance into "sound segments" which can extend from one phoneme to another.

... When sound segments are decomposed into bundles of simultaneous sound features it is often seen that a single sound feature carrying a minimal distinction may extend over all sound segments of importance for a phoneme, including sound segments which essentially belong to adjacent phonemes.

This proposal was of great importance to the concept of coarticulation where some features of one phone may either precede or continue after the actual production of the phone, thereby having considerable influence over adjacent phones in the speech sequence.

This same principle was stressed by Peterson and Shoup (1966) in terms of the importance of secondary phonetic features. Peterson and Shoup devised a phonetic theory based on physiological parameters. In their discussion on secondary parameters, for example when discussing tongue tip placement, they comment that there are several different articulatory formations such as velarization or lip rounding which give an acoustic impression very similar to that of retroflection although physiologically the tongue tip is not retroflexed. Thus Peterson and Shoup imply that inferences drawn from acoustical data and concerning articulatory events may sometimes be erroneous or may have to choose among several articulatory events producing essentially equivalent acoustic outputs. Such feature schemes as the ones cited above have been evolved to make fine descriptions of the "normal" sound system possible. Such schemes are, however, equally useful in describing the abnormal sound system. A step in this direction has been taken by Haas. He postulated that the correction of a child's articulation errors could best be achieved by investigating in detail how the phoneme system which the child has developed for his own use corresponds to the phoneme system of his native language as used by the adults in his environment. Haas studied the phonemic system of a child with deviant speech. He determined that the child was operating according to his own set of phonological rules, and as a result Haas recommended that the place to start in correcting the child's deviant speech would be with those features missing from the child's phonological system which could be acquired with the least difficulty (Haas, 1963).

5

Considering phonemes as bundles of features is stressed by Compton (1970). "One must regard sounds not as indivisible entities, but instead as being composed of intersecting subcomponents or attributes." In his paper Compton makes a detailed analysis of the deviant articulation of two children and says, "the errors characterizing articulatory disorders are generally not specific to single sounds but, rather, are a reflection of systematic patterns of errors encompassing entire classes of sounds possessing one or more features in common".

For several reasons, then, the use of distinctive features to describe children's phone errors would seem to promise advantages over traditional methods of describing faulty sound production: Firstly, more detail regarding the nature of the misarticulation is retained. Secondly, the relationships between sets of errors become discoverable and the child's phonological system can be inferred.

If the above techniques of sound-error judgments involve inferences, regarding articulatory events and derived from auditory cues, then the question may be asked if any method for more direct viewing of the articulatory events has been tried.

X-ray Studies

It may be very important for the clinician to know precisely how the child is manipulating his oral mechanism in order to produce the speech sounds which he is misarticulating. One method of determining what is happening inside the oral cavity is by means of lateral head x-rays. This approach has been used by a number of investigators.

Daniloff and Moll (1968) used high speed cinefluorographic films while investigating the extent of coarticulation of lip rounding in selected speech strings. In their study they found that for most utterances investigated, the lip rounding gesture associated with the vowel /u/ began during the approach to the closure phase of the first consonant in the sequence, extending over as many as four consonants preceding the vowel. Perkell (1969) did a cineradiographic study with reference to basic articulatory differences in the physiology of consonant and vowel production. X-rays have also been used in the investigation of esophageal speech patterns (Shipp, 1967) and of speech patterns before and after pharyngeal-flap operations (Subtelny, 1969). The use of x-rays as a means of visualizing the functioning of the speech mechanism has therefore found acceptance over a varied field of studies.

A survey of the literature reveals that analyzing speech samples by means of distinctive features will give much more information than can be gleaned from determining which target phonemes were misarticulated. The use of a distinctive feature analysis has relevance to the description of deviant speech as well as normal speech, and focuses attention on commonalities of articulation errors across phoneme boundaries; a most important step if the phonological system of the child is to be understood. The actual movement of the child's oral musculature inside the oral cavity can be visualized during speech by means of lateral head x-rays.

Not covered by the existing research, however, are the following questions: Can judges using a phonetic feature scheme do so with acceptable reliability? Can judges using a phonetic feature scheme do so with acceptable validity?

Statement of the Problem

If an articulatory distinctive feature scheme is practically useful, then its reliability, and secondly its validity, must be demonstrated. Information is needed concerning the reliability and validity of the judgments of trained listeners using a distinctive feature scheme to record the errors of defective speakers. It is tacitly accepted that persons using an articulatory feature scheme and a "good" ear (after some training in its use) should be able to make a fairly accurate analysis of the way in which sounds are produced without regard to whether such sounds are correctly or incorrectly produced. However, such a scheme may necessitate that the evaluator rely on feedback from his own "normal"

mechanism to make the analysis of events taking place inside the subject's mouth. One means of obtaining a view "inside" the speaker's mouth while he is articulating is to use x-ray moving pictures of his oral region. The lateral head x-ray views provide information about the activity of the speech structures inside the mouth of the person exhibiting deviant articulation.

Distinctive features promise much, but their reliability and validity is unknown. The present study was designed to investigate these unanswered questions.

This study investigated the use of an articulatory distinctive feature scheme in describing some deviantly produced phones. A group of sixteen judges was asked to make scaled judgments of eight preselected phones using information, both auditory and visual, from two videotapes-- one giving a full face view of the speakers, and the other showing x-ray moving pictures of the speakers' oral regions as they produced the misarticulated phones in words.

This investigation attempted to answer the following questions: 1. What is the intra- and interjudge reliability on selected aspects of a distinctive feature scheme when using the auditory and visual information from:

- a) a full face videotape
- b) a lateral head view radiographic videotape?
- 2. Assuming that the lateral radiographic videotape reveals the "true" state of the articulating structures during the production of selected phones, how valid are the feature judgments made from the full face videotape?

1

CHAPTER II

PROCEDURE

Sixteen graduate students of speech pathology and audiology evaluated, as to selected manner and spatial articulatory features, eight deviantly articulated phones presented on two videotapes. The same eight phones were pictured on each of the two videotapes, one a full face view of the subject, and one a lateral radiographic view of the oral region of the subject. The 16 judges were randomly assigned to two subgroups of eight judges each, and each subgroup performed the evaluation task twice. Subgroup A saw the x-ray tape first and subgroup B saw the full face tape first. A week later, subgroup A saw the full face tape first and subgroup B saw the xray tape first. Prior to the first evaluating session, each subgroup of judges received an hour's training in using the articulatory distinctive features and in recognizing the relevant oral landmarks on both the full face and the x-ray videotapes. The judges then viewed the experimental tapes and described the misarticulated sounds using the articulatory feature scheme.

9

ۇ

STIMULUS MATERIAL

The stimulus material for all the evaluating sessions consisted of two prerecorded videotapes of eight preselected phones produced within words by five children. Videotape "A" was a full face view of the child producing the word, and videotape "B" was a lateral x-ray of the child's oral region during production of the same word. The two videotapes were made simultaneously. The eight experimental sample words were separated one from another on the videotape by 30-second intervals to allow time for the judges to evaluate each feature. It was found during a pilot study that an average of seven presentations at 20-second intervals were needed to make possible thoughtful judgments concerning each articulatory feature. The experimental tapes were therefore constructed so that each word was repeated 10 times at 30-second intervals to allow an extra margin of safety. During each evaluating session, each word was presented to the judges 20 times, 10 during the full face presentation and 10 times during the x-ray presentation, making a total of 40 presentations of each word over the two evaluating sessions. The presentation of the videotapes was arranged for the first evaluating session so that subgroup A of judges viewed the x-ray material first and then the full face material, while subgroup B viewed the full face first and then the x-ray; during the second evaluating session these orders were reversed.

Reproduced with permission of the copyright owner. Further reproduction prohibited without permission.

1

SPEAKERS SELECTED FOR STUDY

The children who were videotaped to provide the stimulus material were selected from the large clinical population of the department of Speech Pathology and Audiology at the Glenrose Provincial General Hospital, which is a rehabilitation hospital in Edmonton, Alberta. The criteria for selection of the children were as follows:

- 1. The children must have functional articulation problems with no indications of hearing loss, dysarthria, cleft palate, etc.
- They must have been diagnosed as producing subsitutions for the sounds selected for this study.
- 3. They must have the majority of the growth in their oral region completed. (Consequently, the age of the children ranged between five years ten months, and nine years four months.)
- 4. The children must have no structural abnormality in the oral region.
- 5. The children must not have been exposed to any large doses of radiation during their lives, nor should they have received any radiation within the past six months.
- 6. The children must be relatively cooperative and able to keep their heads still during the production of the words. (This latter requirement was necessary if clear x-rays of the oral region were to be obtained.)

A list of children who met the criteria was compiled and the children were then screened by the experimenter and a list of words containing the appropriate phones was devised for each child. A training session in which each child was conditioned to produce the appropriate word in response to a large picture was carried out immediately prior to the recording session.

PHYSICAL SETUP

The videotape recordings were made in the Radiography Department of the Glenrose Hospital, with the assistance of a radiographer and a radiologist, both of whom had five years' experience in the use of videotaped x-ray studies of the posterior oral region for the determination of velopharyngeal sufficiency.

The recordings were made with the subject standing beside the fluoroscope, the head being held steady by a modified head clamp, and the x-ray images of the oral region being fed directly into a videotape recorder (Figure 1). At the same time a second camera recorded a full face view of the subject which was fed into a second videotape recorder. The auditory signal during production of the words was recorded on both videotapes. The room lighting was kept as bright as possible during the recording in order to obtain a clear picture of the subject's face. A good quality microphone was positioned at an optimum distance from each subject in order to receive a clear auditory signal on the tape recording. It was not possible to eliminate fluoroscope machine noise entirely, but noise was kept as low as possible so that it would not mask the auditory signal on the tape recording. This was achieved by using a directional microphone to pick up the subjects' voices.

A barium compound was painted along the midline of each subject's tongue from the anterior tip as far back as possible without causing discomfort, just prior to the recording. It was found during a pilot study that this procedure greatly improved the differentiation obtained on the videotaped x-rays.



Figure 1. Physical Setup Showing Position of Speaker, the Head Clamp, the Fluoroscope, the X-ray Source, the Monitor and the Camera for the Videotape Recorders.

PERSONNEL AND SAFETY CONSIDERATIONS

In addition to the subjects, a radiologist, a radiographer, an assistant, and the experimenter were present during the recording session. All personnel present wore lead aprons as a safety precaution.

Radiation hazard measurements were taken prior to the recording session using an EIL Model 37c x-ray Dosimeter and a 350cc chamber. The accuracy with this equipment is expected to be generally better than + 10%. The control setting was 60KV peak and 3.4 mA maximum with an adult phantom in place for the lateral pharynx. The entrance dose rate with the phantom in place and including backscatter was found to be 440 mR/minute. The exist dose rate with the phantom in place and including scatter was found to be 6 mR/minute. The scattered radiation at the front side of the table at a distance of 40 inches was found to be 0.05 mR/minute and 4 mR/hour if the table barrier was not in place. The National Council on Radiation Protection report number 33, "Medical X-ray and Gamma-ray Protection for Energies up to 10 MeV", states on page 10 that "with modern equipment, most fluoroscopy can be carried out with exposure rates of less than 5 R/minute". The 0.440 R/minute levels found prior to the recording session were well below this level and those levels indicated on page 42, Appendix B, of the NCRP report. The levels quoted in the report are from an United States government publication.

An exposure of 50 R over a very short period will produce minute changes in the lymphatic tissue of the body, and an intense exposure of 100 R is needed before any genetic changes can be detected. In order

to reduce the possibility of cumulative effects of radiation, one of the criteria for selection was that the child should not have been exposed to radiation within the last six months. In actual fact, only one child had received x-rays prior to this study-- a dental x-ray 18 months previously. It was felt by the radiographic consultant called in to make the readings of the radiation hazard that the procedures carried out were well within limits usually accepted as conservative. The length of time each subject was exposed to radiation during the recording session ranged from 10 seconds to 68 seconds, with a median exposure of 32 seconds. The range of cumulative radiation exposure was from 0.073 R/minute to 0.500 R/minute. Therefore, the highest level of cumulative radiation was one hundredth of the exposure necessary to cause minute changes in the lymphatic tissue of the body.

PHONES SELECTED FOR STUDY

In order to sample across the broad range of the English phonological system, the following phones were selected for recording: θ , t, s, l, and k. The particular phones selected were such that the x-ray picture would be able to provide valuable information about the actual place of articulation and other relevant features. The words selected to contain the phones were: <u>thumb</u>, tur<u>t</u>le, <u>seal</u>, glass, house, moose, <u>lamb</u>, and <u>cake</u>. Four different substitutions occurred for the four /s/ phones included in the study.

i

Reproduced with permission of the copyright owner. Further reproduction prohibited without permission.

ARTICULATORY PHONETIC FEATURES USED

Those features which could be described from the x-ray of the oral region were included for the purpose of this study. The features were: time, transition speed, place of articulation, tongue part, tongue shape, and tongue elevation. The features are shown on a sample judgment sheet, Figure 2. Each feature was rated on a seven-point scale with 4 representing normal, 1 representing "too little" or "too far forward", 7 representing "too much" or "too far back", and the other scale values provided graduated points within the two extremes.

RELAIBILITY AND VALIDITY

It was decided before the experimental procedure was carried out that a high reliability would be defined as a discrepancy of one scale unit or less when repeated judgments of the same sound were compared. Reasonable reliability was defined as a judgmental discrepancy of 1.9 scale points or less. Judgmental discrepancies of greater than 1.9 scale points would be regarded as demonstrating poor reliability. These definitions were based on a consideration of the fact that a deviation 2.0 scale points or over would involve a difference in placement as discrepant as "a little behind the usual position on the hard palate" to "on the anterior soft palate". A more detailed description of the appropriate scale ratings to the various placement areas within the oral region and the appropriate ratings for the other features is given in the script of the training session (Appendix A).

16

.

•

Judge's name		Date		
Word	Sound	X-ray	Full	face

							_
	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
<u>Time</u> onset			./				i
nucleus			- <u>v</u>		1		
offset				1			
011000				-¥			
Transition speed							
consonant to vowel							
vowel to consonant			+				·
gilde							
							
Jabiodontal							
interdental							
dental				1			
alveolar				V			
palatal							ł
velar							
pharyngeal							
glottal							
Tongue part					-		
tip			<u> </u>				
blade		ļ	l 			ļ	
dorsum							
					<u> </u>	ļ	
longue shape						1	
torward		}			ļ	<u> </u>	
retroflex		 				ļ	
Tangua alavation		<u> </u>		<u> </u>		<u> </u>	
tongue elevation			<u> </u>	<u> </u>			├ ────┤
	1	1	1	1	1	1	1 3

Rating Scale

"]" -- too little or too far forward "4" -- normal "7" -- too much or too far back

Figure 2. Judges' Articulatory Feature Rating Form Showing Possible Sample Judgments

TRAINING SESSION

Prior to evaluating the experimental videotapes, the judges were given a training session. The training session was an hour long. During this time the principles of articulatory distinctive feature schemes were discussed. The judges were then given some training in recognizing and evaluating the actual distinctive features used in this study. Each feature was discussed, and examples given of different aspects of each feature in sample phones. The judges were given the opportunity to practice evaluating groups of features and to discuss their evaluations. They were also trained to recognize the anatomical features on an x-ray of the oral region and were given similar practice in scaling and evaluating the phonetic features in this medium. The judges were then asked to evaluate the experimental videotapes in the same manner. (Appendix A presents the scripts of the training session.)

TRANSCRIPTION OF JUDGMENTS

I

The judgements obtained from each graduate student were in the form of a set of psychological scale values ranging from 1 to 7 for each particular articulatory feature. The judgments concerning many features are logically inter-related; for example, judgments concerning place of articulation will usually identify one single area of the mouth to the exclusion of all others. Thus if an alveolar place is identified, dental, palatal, etc. judgments are excluded. Such judgments tend almost always to be mutually exclusive therefore. Further, the nine place features identified parts along a physical continuum (the mouth from front to back). For these sets of reasons, the 7-point scales for each of the 9 place features were numbered consecutively from 1 to 63. For similar reasons the transition speed, tongue part, and tongue shape scales were each also numbered consecutively (Figure 3). The rating scale may have caused some inconsistencies in the difficulty of judging the place of production of some phones. The judges were required to break up the interdental, dental, and alveolar areas into seven points each, which required a much finer discrimination than the similar judgements concerning the palatal and velar regions (which later covered a much larger area by any physical measure).

SUMMARY

Eight phones were presented to 16 judges who made judgmental ratings of them using some articulatory phonetic features in the description. The judges viewed the phones on two occasions and made their judgments from both a full face videotape and an x-ray videotape of the subjects' oral regions during production of the phones.

ż

Reproduced with permission of the copyright owner. Further reproduction prohibited without permission.

Judge's	s name		Date		
Word _		Sound	X-ray	_ Full	face

	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·						
	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
Time				,			
onset		2	3_	4	5	6	- <u>]</u>
nucreus	<u> </u>	2	ت_	4	5	6	
offset	<u>`</u>	2	3	_4_	_5_	ط	7
Transition sneed							
consonant to yowel		9	2		5		7
vowel to consonsant	8	q		- <u>u</u> r. 11	<u>.</u>	12	11.
alide	15			18	19	20	.91
gride				19			
Place							
bilabial	<u> </u>	2	3	4	5	6	7
labiodental	8	9	10		12	13	14
interdental	15	16	บ	18	19	20	<u>_&I_</u>
dental		23	24	25	26	27	28
alveolar	29	30	31	32_	33	34	35_
palatal	_36_	37	3&	39	40	Lu	12
velar	_43_	W4	45	lile		48	49
pharyngeal		51	52	53	5 k	55	56
glottal	_51	58	59	60	61	62	<u> 83</u>
						ļ	
Tongue part		6	2	.	E		-
blade	Ý	a	10	<u>Ψ</u>	<u>ງ</u> ເຄ	12	
daveum	15	11		19	19		-19
uorsum		10		10		- <u>-</u>	~~~
Tongue shape					·	1	
forward		2	3	1	5	6	7
retroflex	8	9	10	11	12	13	14
						<u> </u>	
Tongue elevation		షి	3	<u>u</u>	5	6	
				1	L		• 1

Rating Scale

"]" -- too little or too far forward "4" -- normal "7" -- too much or too far back

Figure 3. Judges' Articulatory Feature Rating Form Showing the Scale Values Assigned to Each Judgment Possibility.

CHAPTER 3

RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

The data of this study were scale values for each of eight articulatory features used in descriptions of eight misarticulated speech sounds. These data were analyzed to evaluate two dimensions of the data, their reliability and their validity.

Two kinds of reliability were distinguished and evaluated, intrajudge reliability and interjudge reliability.

Concerning validity, it was decided, a priori, that the most revealing views of each child's sound-producing efforts were his x-ray views taken while he was attempting the phone in question. The scale values produced by the judges responding to the x-ray views were, therefore, taken as the best representation of "reality", i.e. where the tongue really was positioned during the attempt at a given phone, etc. The mean of such scale values for each feature and each phone and over responses to both x-ray views were considered to represent the real state of affairs respecting any feature, and were the standard for comparison in the validity study.

Each of the judgements assigned to each feature on each phone by each exposure mode took the form of a scale value (as described in the Procedure chapter). This system allowed a discrete value to be assigned to the rating scale for each feature, and these discrete values were used in the calculations. Where no response was made by a judge for a particular feature, such judgments were not taken into account in the

Reproduced with permission of the copyright owner. Further reproduction prohibited without permission.

5.

RELIABILITY

From the raw data a table of discrepancies for each phone and feature was devised by subtracting each individual judge's rating on the second session x-ray from his judgment on the first session x-ray, and subtracting each judge's rating on the second session full face from his judgment rating on the first session full face (Appendix C). The table of discrepancies was then examined for significant deviations between judges and between x-ray and full face judgments. It was noted that while certain features showed wide discrepancies for certain elements (e.g. the place feature for the initial phone in "lamb" showed an x-ray interjudge mean discrepancy of 7.67 scale points whereas the full face interjudge mean discrepancy was 17.47 scale points) the majority of the full face and x-ray discrepancies were comparable (Figure 4 comparing the x-ray and full face discrepancies for the phone in "turtle"). The discrepancy of the x-ray judgments and the full face judgments rarely varied more than two scale points when the x-ray and full face discrepancy means for each feature within each phone were compared. The judgments therefore showed equivalent variations in reliability for the x-ray and full face modes. In view of their essentially equivalent reliability, and because full face is the usual mode of perceiving data about articulation, further analyses of the reliability of judgments were confined to the data from the full face mode.

The judgments were analyzed for reliability in two ways: by articulatory feature and by phone. The discrepancy scores for each judge were first summed over all phones, thereby yielding an estimate of

à

Reproduced with permission of the copyright owner. Further reproduction prohibited without permission.



reliability as related to judgments of a child's skill in executing a given articulatory feature. Secondly, the discrepancy scores for each judge were summed over all features, thereby yielding an estimate of reliability as related to a child's attempts at a single phone.

Feature

The mean discrepancy scores derived from this analysis (Table 1) showed that the reliability as related to some features was in excess of the a priori limits set for adequate reliability, i.e. 1.9 scale points or less. As was previously explained, it was felt that to accept a discrepancy score of greater than two scale points could mean that in certain instances the judge was unable to discriminate between two distinctly separate anatomical areas. However, some feature judgments fell well within the range of acceptability (Figure 5). In particular the following features showed the highest reliability: time, tongue shape, and tongue elevation.

<u>Time-onset feature</u>. Showed a range of intrajudge mean discrepancy scores from 0.33 to 2.13 scale units with an interjudge mean discrepancy score of 1.16 scale units. This finding would suggest that generally judges were able to determine if an element of the feature bundle occurred slightly before or after the other elements of the feature bundle, and that judges were able to make reliable scale ratings on the element concerned.

<u>Time-nucleus feature</u>. Showed a range of intrajudge mean discrepancy scores from 0.13 to 1.88 scale units with an interjudge mean discrepancy

12	ible 1. Ri	eliability A	مدمطنهم	to Feature	0				•
	Means	of scale	Value D	screpancie	s for Eo	sch Judg	2 Ouer Al	1 Phones.	
	Time. Onset	Time -	Time - Offset	Transition Speed	Place	Tengue	Tongue	Tenque Élevation	
А	1.00	0.25	0.80	3.75	08·9	69.1	0.86	11.0	
ପ	1.57	١. الحا	2.33	3.68	b.35	H.17	3.00	2.67	
$\dot{\mathcal{O}}$	1.38	11-0	0.75	2.50	255	J.00	0 SS: O	1.35	
0	1.00	1.63	1,00	3.14	638	H.17	8 5	1.38	
77	8.	8:1	0.50	શુ. 1 5	10.00	1.00	3.13	1.13	
<u> </u>	0.85	1.43	1.25	3.50		5.14	1.63	00.1	
৫	0.33	[J.1	g.50	2.38	h.63	3,33	17.0	C.LO	
Т	1.43	1.25	1,13	3.50	3 .83	3.51	2.17 2	8	
$ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \$	1.13	- 88	1.88	3.88	4.88	2.0	o,7S	69.1	
\times	0.50	0.13	0.13	I. 75	2.13	9.33	1.00	0.57	
1	9.13	0.88	0.63	2.25	H.75	5 X3	1.00	1.95	
Z	8.1	8.0	0.43	4.75	6.13	55,-	J.20	0%0	
2	1.58	1.13	1. 45	2.25	8.75	. સ કુર	1.86	11.14	
0	1.63	0 X	1. 25	1,75	8.7S	2.11	1.33 1	1.33	
9	0.63	11.0	1.13	2.13	h.00	4.13	1.25	0.5% XX:0	
Q	1.13	0,63	0.7S	0.8%	6.38	81	2.57	8 8	
5	91.1	0.97	1111	9.E	5,99	3.08	1.52	1.14	



score of 0.97 scale points. This finding suggests that generally the judges could determine any abnormalities in the nucleus or central portion of a phone (the feature package). The judges could apparently make reliable judgments about elements of the central nucleus portion of the feature bundle which were adequately or inadequately maintained.

<u>Time-offset feature</u>. Showed a range of intrajudge mean discrepancy scores from 0.13 to 2.33 scale points with an interjudge mean discrepancy score of 1.14 scale units. This finding suggests that judges could reliably determine if an element of the feature bundle was abnormal in either finishing too quickly or being extended too long.

<u>Tongue-shape feature</u>. Showed a range of intrajudge mean discrepancy scores from 0.71 to 2.57 scale points with an interjudge mean score of 1.52 scale points. This finding would suggest that the judges could reliably determine whether or not the tongue was retroflexed and assign a scale value to the position utilized in the production of the sound.

<u>Tongue-elevation feature</u>. Showed a range of intrajudge mean discrepancy scores from 0.00 to 2.67 scale points with an interjudge mean discrepancy score of 1.14 scale units. This finding would suggest that the judges could reliably assign a scale value to the height of the tongue during the utterance of the sound under consideration.

<u>Place, tongue-part and transition speed</u>. Some of the other features showed a wider range of discrepancies, particularly the place feature. In this instance there was a range of intrajudge mean discrepancies from 1.83

Reproduced with permission of the copyright owner. Further reproduction prohibited without permission.
to 14.14 scale points with an interjudge mean discrepancy of 5.99 scale units. It was felt that these large deviations could probably be accounted for as a function of the training session given to the judges. In particular it was felt that the judges required more training in identifying and discriminating primary and secondary articulation. For example, in the word "thumb", which could have been transcribed as /wnm/ from the videotape, some judges described only the lip position for the /w/ whereas some other judges described only the tongue position for the /w/; this resulted in a large number of scale points of discrepancy between judgments (e.g. the judgments made by judges D and J for the word "thumb" [Appendix B, page 62]). These errors in place judgments also had an effect on the tongue part judgments since those judges who described the lip position for the /w/ would therefore decline to make a judgment about which part of the tongue was used for that sound. The feature of transition speed fell just outside the range of acceptability, having an interjudge mean discrepancy score of 2.82 scale points. Examination of the transition speed judgments revealed a scattering of judgments of vowel-consonant transitions concerning such phones as the /s/ in seal. There seemed, then, some confusion among the judges as to the nature of transitions.

Phone

Scale score discrepancies analyzed according to phone are presented in Table 2. While four of the interjudge mean discrepancy scores showed scale point discrepancies greater than 1.9 scale units, it seemed that the type of sound substituted for the phone under ig on the mean discrepancy of the scale point

12	ble 2. R Means ct	elicibility f Scale 1	Accordin Jalue Disi	g to Pho Crepancies	Por Each	n Judge C	Duor All Fe	sakures.	
	Gake	<u> </u>	Jurèle	qu ny	HOLLSC	Scal	Glass	Moose	
Ľ	0.71	6.33	orts	1.29	0.57	3.29	1,75	2.75	
0	00. ී	4.75	3.29	1.67	1.00	5.43	1.63	1.80	
Q	0,85	3.75	1.50	1.67	51.	9.K	81	1.14-	
\bigcirc	0.83	8.8	1.25	りこ	1.33	2.29	3,29	534	
717	1.13	1.13	2.63	1.25	211-2	1.13	2.2%	00 01 01	_
بدا	H ST	543	1.63	6.00	STIG	Q.58	4.13	1.57	
હઝ	9.IL	2.17	1.43	2.50	1.17	<u>р.с</u>	2.38	3.00	
T	1.86	3.71	2.14	8:1	117	e Se	1.13	69.4	
$\overline{)}$	1.50	9.57	3.75	1.67	1.86	0.53	1.50	Ŀ.	
\leq	0.86	H.57	2,25	0.25	1,14	0,63	3.3%		
ل_	0.8b	35. () 35	1.63	0.57	ST.O	2.63	1.38	8.	
Z	1,50	B 9	2,25	3.20	0110	0.63	0,60	1.13	
2	1.13	5.57	3.75	1,00	0.50	23:53	3.75	1.50	
0	9.3S	5.86	1.75	0.57	1.50	29. 39. 39.	2 2 2 2 2	8	
9	25.00	9. 0	2:51	0.67	1.86	<u> </u>	a .38	3 3 0	
Ø	00	8. 8.	8.1	80	0,50	11.1	2.57	1:57	
孟	1.15	h.55	9.10	191	1.80	2.15	9.13	1.82	

judgment made (Figure 6). For example, with a phone which obviously had a single place of articulation such as the $/\theta/$ in $/mu\theta/$ ("moose"), the interjudge mean discrepancy score was 1.82 scale units; whereas with a phone which had both a primary and secondary place of articulation such as the /w/ in /wam/ ("lamb") the interjudge mean discrepancy score was higher, being 4.55 scale units. An interesting example of judges using primary articulation descriptions on one occasion and secondary articulation descriptions on another occasion can be seen in the judgment of judges A and B describing the phone in "thumb" (Appendix B, page 62). From examination of the data, it seems that some indivudal judges vacillated between judging the primary and secondary articulation, whereas other judges were consistent about what they described. As mentioned previously, such findings reveal the need for training judges to use care in describing both primary and secondary places of articulation.

The phones which showed the greatest reliability were "<u>cake</u>", "<u>th</u>umb", "<u>house</u>", and "<u>moose</u>", with interjudge mean discrepancy scores of 1.68, 1.66, 1.80 and 1.82 scale points respectively. It is interesting to note that the highest and lowest interjudge mean discrepancy scores were associated with essentially the same phone. For both "<u>th</u>umb" and "<u>lamb</u>" the speakers substituted what was essentially a /w/. In the description of the sound in "<u>th</u>umb" both judge B and judge G declined to make estimates for some of the features, having 5 and 6 no-responses respectively. Since a significant number of noresponses was not evident in the judgments of the phone in "<u>lamb</u>", this contributed to the higher discrepancy score for that phone, i.e.



31

for the judgments related to "lamb" the judges made 243 attempts to scale the features perceived, while in the judgments related to "thumb" the judges made only 226 attempts to scale the features perceived, thereby reducing the possibility of a discrepancy between scores. It is not altogether clear why the judges attempted description of the phone in "lamb" but tended to refuse to consider the status of similar features as manifested in the phone in "thumb".

VALIDITY

In order to analyze the results for validity, each of the individual full face judgments was compared to the mean of the x-ray judgments. As was previously discussed, it was felt that the average of the interjudge means for the two x-ray sessions would provide the best estimate of the actual activity inside the speaker's mouth. A table of discrepancies of individual judgments from the x-ray mean was derived (Appendix D). Intra- and interjudge means were computed from these discrepancy scores. Three sets of tables presenting the discrepancy scores were derived as related to feature, phone, and order of presentation (Tables 3, 4 and 5).

Feature

The mean discrepancy scores derived from the analysis according to feature showed the same pattern of results as for the corresponding reliability table (Figure 7). Examination of the raw data suggested a possible explanation for the low means in the time judgments, namely that there was a preponderance of ratings at the "normal" part of the scale, and the mean judgments center around a rating of "4". The

onderance are open to conjecture, but it may have

F 1	HECINS MECINS All Pho	Validition	4 Accor	ding to Biscre	Fecture pancies divin o	RE. EX.	periment	ige Over
	Time- Daset	Time- Nucleus	Time -	Transition	, Place	Tongue	Tongue	Tongue
A	06.1	04.1	1.18	3.70	શા.૪	3.29	0.67	1.36
0	Q.12		1.55	371	9.15	4.52	اما .ا	06.1
<u>ى</u>	1.06	0.b9	0 33	ુ. સ્ટ	9.04	3 68	8.1	1.03
A	1.58	51-1	0.95	2.19	8.34	3.68	1.95	69.1
171	1.54	1. 14	ا.ىلا	06.1	10.01	н. 99	1.45	1.26
4	1.03	101	1.00	3.58	13.77	5.71	10.0	1.60
eb	1.02			3.26	7.65	4.70	0.67	0,42
I	1.67	1.16	511.1	3.87	8.99	3.25	01.1	1.54
17	0.40	1.09	1.03	3.32	9.41	3.79	0.67	1.44
\succ	19. ()	0.44	0.61	1.80	N.32	10.4	2.17	1.23
<u></u>	1.36	0.62	చ స	3.52	8,64	3.63	1.20	01.1
Σ	0.61	0.33	0.34	ୁ ଅନ୍ତି ଅନ୍ତି	6.18	2.45	01.0	0.96
2	1- 68	1.13	į. IT	1.1.1	91.18	14.26	1.61	61.1
0	0.81	0.3S	1.08		6.3]	3.13	1.21	1.48
٩	ଟ୍ଡ -	0.73	9 9	+c;/		3.Wo	1.91	0,93
Ø	1.03	0.85	0.b5	1.37	8.01	2.95	0.90	0.00
团	1.91	0.96	1:01	3.65	91.6	3.86	1.48	1.30

•

12	Neons Prearur Fealur	Validity of Scale es and	Accordini Value Order of	Discrepa	ne. Incies f	be Each	i judge C	Nuc All Mapes.
	Cake	Lamb	Jurtle	quint	House	Seal	Glass	HOUSE
CI	1.27	5.16	1.169	3.74	5.77	2.23	2.39	11-JC
$\overline{\mathcal{O}}$	3.34	5.33	8.1L	3,69	t 33	80. 50. 87. 87. 87. 87. 87. 87. 87. 87. 87. 87	रू २२ २२	4 07
) ري (30 30 	5.14	1.510	05-1	4.30	1.80	174	181
	2.40	H 11	2.3	3.5%	5.34	1.85	2.07	2.09
171	1.25	5.75	2:59	2.89	14-99	<u>.</u> S	وي م	2.50
5	2.74	3.37	3.26	P.OJ.	6.43	33.1	3.33	2.34
్ర	65.	4.95	2.23	\$. 63	5.03	1.90	194	2.07
I	<u>3</u>	5.44	061	4.12	5.97	2 21	1.58	ي ب ب
5	1.26	2.16	2.UC	5.55	5.42	1.03	1.39	<u>छ</u> -
\mathbf{Y}	16,	3.0%	1.92	2.20	6.37	ST-1	2.49	911.I
(1.37	5.41		377	r So T	1.48	હત્ર સં	8:
I	55	3,39 2,39	୍ର ଅନ	9.12	5.03	0,66	19.1	173
2	0.63	3.67	2.18	9.6I	5.44	1.78	4.12	071-1
0	555	3.08	1.70	ରୁ ଚୁର୍ଚ୍ଚ	LI-550	-8S	مع 1:30	1.23
9	-5-	2.31	178	3	4.95	1.18	1,73 5	کی م
1	0,93	3.82	2.90		L-L3	SC:1	s.s	1.36
3	1.65	4.14	1.28	3.19	5.17	1.74	5 23	1.95

Reproduced with permission of the copyright owner. Further reproduction prohibited without permission.

.

		Table 5. Validity Haronding to Order.	Means of Scale Jalue Juscroponcies	for Each Judge Quor All Phones	and All Featuries.											
Ind session full face	9.90	3.32 2	୍ପ ଜ	୍ଷ ପ୍ର	9.8 C	3 60	2.43	3.00	a.35	ର.୨୬	ی. م.ر	2 2 2	کا ہا ہے	ରୁ. ତୁ	ید. ۲:۲	196 196
Ist session full frice	2.61	3.73 2	2 jet	2 89 89	<u> Э</u> су	3.51	3.28	3.0	11.2	2.33	2.48	61-1	2.64	ليا، في ا	یں می	אילול
	æ	3	\mathcal{O}	\bigcirc	LU)	4	ෆ	Ţ	5	34	لب.	Z	Z	00	2	CS_

Reproduced with permission of the copyright owner. Further reproduction prohibited without permission.

ର.ଜ୍

2.74

2.01



been that the judges found it difficult to detect deviations in this area and therefore resorted to scoring what they heard and saw in the "normal" category. A similar preponderance of "normal" ratings was not evident in the judgments of the tongue features.

<u>Time-onset feature</u>. Showed a range of intrajudge mean discrepancy scores from 0.61 to 2.12 scale units with an interjudge mean discrepancy score of 1.21 scale units. This finding would suggest that estimations of the early or late commencement of an element of the feature bundle can validly be inferred by individual judges from the auditory and visual information available in a full face videotape, unless it is true that the preponderance of "normal" ratings is indicative of an inability to detect abnormalities in this area.

<u>Time-nucleus feature</u>. Showed a range of intrajudge mean discrepancy scores from 0.33 to 1.77 scale points with an interjudge mean discrepancy score of 0.96 scale points. This finding suggests that individual judges can made valid judgments about elements of the central, nucleus portion of the feature package which were adequately or inadequately maintained. The alternative explanation is that, again, the judges were unable to detect abnormalities in this area and therefore judged the stimulus as being "normal" for that feature.

<u>Time-offset feature</u>. Showed a range of intrajudge mean discrepancy scores from 0.34 to 1.71 scale points, with an interjudge mean discrepancy score of 1.04 scale units. This finding suggests that judges can made valid predictions from the auditory and visual information on the full face videotape about elements of the feature bundle which either finish too quickly or extend too long. Again, the alternative explanation could be that judges were unable to detect abnormalities in this area.

<u>Tongue-shape feature</u>. Showed intrajudge mean discrepancy scores which ranged from 0.67 to 2.90 scale units, with an interjudge mean discrepancy score of 1.48 scale units. This finding would suggest that individual judges can successfully infer from the information on the full face videotape to what extent the tongue is in a forward or retroflexed position.

<u>Tongue elevation feature</u>. Showed a range of intrajudge mean discrepancy scores from 0.92 to 1.92 scale points, with an interjudge mean discrepancy score of 1.30 scale points. This finding would suggest that judges can made valid judgments about the height of the tongue during the production of a phone from the auditory and visual information on a full face videotape.

Transition speed, place and tongue part. Had interjudge mean discrepancy scores of 2.65, 9.18, and 3.86 scale points respectively. This apparent inability on the part of the judges to made valid judgments from the full face videotape information could probably be reduced if a longer and more specific training program were devised. In particular, if the judges were given more opportunity to compare their judgments concerning a given phone to their perception of the phone from the x-ray view, then variability from the x-ray mean would probably decrease. The widest range of mean discrepancy scores occurred on the place feature. It may be that this could be partially accounted for by the nature of the phones under consideration. Most of the error phones were articulated in the anterior portion of the oral cavity. As was discussed earlier, the rating scale required the judges to make much finer place discriminations in the anterior region of the mouth as compared to the posterior region. Therefore, a discrepancy of 5 scale points is much closer together anatomically in the anterior region (a matter of 5 mm. at most) than it is in the posterior region. It is possible that another factor which caused a loss of validity was that the judges experienced some semantic difficulties. Some confusion arose between judges because one judge would use a specific term to designate a feature which was different from the term used by another judge. One example of this was that some judges had different meanings for "too fast" and "too late" as related to the onset feature, and this type of semantic difficulty resulted in a loss of validity. An additional factor in the loss of validity was that some of the judges were much less sophisticated than others in the use of phonetics. Some of the graduate students had been in the field of speech pathology less than a year, and while they had all been exposed to some level of education in phonetics, these students had obviously had less opportunity than others to practice these relatively new skills.

Phone

In two instances the interjudge mean discrepancy scores for phones described fell within the range of acceptability (Figure 8). The range of intrajudge mean discrepancy scores in the phone in "cake" was from 0.83 to 2.74 scale points with an interjudge mean discrepancy score of 1.68 scale points. For the phone in "seal", the intrajudge mean dis-



ł

crepancy scores ranged from 0.66 to 2.98, with an interjudge mean discrepancy score of 1.74 scale units. In both these instances the phone used by the children was similar to /t/, although there were some differences in both the manner and spatial features involved. This finding would suggest that when the sound under consideration was fairly close to a standard phone, the judges were able to make somewhat more valid inferences about its production from the auditory and visual information on the full face videotape.

In contrast to sounds which are fairly close to phones in general use in the language, the judges had more difficulty when the phones under consideration were not as easy to associate with a standard phone of the language. For example, the phone used in "glass" could probably be most closely described as a palatal /t/ which was quite different from a phone used in our language. Consequently, the judges appeared to have more difficulty in making valid inferences about that sound.

An additional cause for the loss of validity in the description of some of the phones was that some judges failed to detect some elements of the feature bundle. When judging the phone used in "house" /hauf/, for example, some judges missed the faint terminal consonant sound and therefore described the latter part of the dipthong in that word, rather than the consonant (in addition, the full face videotape gave very limited visual clues for this sound since the child used a very lax labiodental position which looked almost bilabial and very similar to the position of his oral musculature at rest).

<u>Order</u>

The only variable to be considered here was order of presentation. Reproduced with permission of the copyright owner. Further reproduction prohibited without permission.

The results showed very little variation in validity between the first and second session exposures (Figure 9), the interjudge mean discrepancy scores being 2.74 and 2.65 scale points respectively. These values were outside the range of acceptability. This finding clearly reveals that no important variability in validity was associated with the order of presentation of the videotapes to the judges.

These findings clearly add support to the contention that judges are able to make valid inferences about features from the information on a full face videotape. It is therefore suggested that, with longer and more specific training, individual judges should be able to achieve relatively high validity of judgment over all articulatory features.

INFERENCES FROM THE STUDY

The analysis of the results suggests a number of avenues of thought. In consideration of the generally large mean discrepancy scores which were consistently associated with the place feature as compared to other features, it seems that there may have been at least three important influencing factors:

The judges were required to make particularly fine discriminatory judgments for place features in the anterior region of the oral cavity. In addition, there was a preponderance of phones produced anteriorly among the sound subsitutions of the children used for the study. These two factors may have biased the results and have produced to a large extent the higher mean discrepancy scores for this feature. Future studies might therefore include more posteriorly produced sounds for evaluation. Consideration might also be given to reducing the number



of scale points on the rating scale for such features as interdental, dental, and lveolar while retaining the larger rating scale for the anatomically larger areas such as the palatal and velar regions.

The judges would probably benefit from more extensive training in the concept of primary and secondary articulation. As has been pointed out, some of the judges had conflicting ideas about which was the primary and secondary articulation for a particular phone. For example, the group of judges were divided in their description of /w/, some describing the tongue position, others the lip position as the primary articulation of this pohone. Future studies might, therefore, include in the training sessions specific information about which are primary and which are secondary articulations for various phones.

Probably closely associated with the two points first mentioned in this section, the judges would benefit from specific guidance in relating the rating scale to specific anatomical locations within the oral cavity. It should be advantageous for future investigators to construct a large model or chart of the oral region which could be marked off and numbered to relate specifically to the rating scale used. Reports from the judges after the study had been completed were such that many of them were unable to remember which end of the rating scale was appropriate for the sound they wanted to evaluate; for example, several judges could not remember whether an articulation in which the lower lip was grossly inverted below the upper teeth should be rated as "labiodental 1" or "labiodental 7". Future investigators should therefore consider leaving the model or chart, with its key to the rating scale, in full view of the judges throughout the judgment session.

Another fact revealed by the results of this study was that there was very little difference between judgments made at the first session and judgments made at the second session. This was true both of the two sessions of x-ray mode and the two sessions of full face mode. This would suggest that judges did not change their opinions to any great extent as a result of successive exposures to the same material. It seems, therefore, that once judges have established their own set of standards as far as the rating scale is concerned, they are able to maintain these internal standards and apply them fairly consistently. Training sessions might, therefore, provide more early comparison between full face video presentation and x-ray presentation so that the internal standards being established in the judges are even more valid ones than was the case in the present study.

From observation during the judging sessions and from comments made later by the judges, it seemed that 30 seconds was too long a time interval between successive presentations of a given phone for most efficient judging. In many instances the judges did not wish to have the phone repeated 10 times. With the equipment available for use in this study it would have been extremely difficult to reduce the 30second interval between each presentation of the phone, but future investigators might have the ability to reduce the time interval. In a clinical setting, if just one person were making the judgments there would, of course, be more flexibility in the number of times the judges wished to view the phone under evaluation, and he could reduce or increase the number of presentations as necessary.

ſ

CHAPTER 4

SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

This study was designed to investigate the reliability and validity of the use of some articulatory distinctive features in the description of misarticulated sounds. More specifically, it was, first of all, an attempt to see whether judges, both individually and as a group, could make reliable judgments about misarticulated sounds using several distinctive features from the more traditional tool of a full face videotape, and from the more specialized tool of an x-ray videotape. Secondly, it was an attempt to compare the full face judgments to the more precise judgments of intraoral speech events obtained in reaction to the videotaped x-rays to determine how valid the judgments made from more traditional cues are.

Sixteen graduate students received an hour-long training session and then made judgments about articulatory distinctive features using a series of seven-point rating scales. The judgments described eight misarticulated phones. The judges viewed two videotapes of the identical speech act, one videotape presenting x-rays of the oral region, and the other presenting a full face view of each subject. Each tape was viewed on two occasions and judgments of the nature of the misarticulations pictured were made.

From the judgments made by each judge, sets of mean discrepancy scores were computed to evaluate the reliability of the judgments of a given phone, feature, and mode. From the discrepancy scores between the

mean x-ray judgment and each full face judgment, sets of mean discrepancy scores were computed to evaluate the validity of the judgments for phone, feature and mode.

From the raw data and the statistical results of this study, the following conclusions may be drawn:

Reliability for time features, tongue shape, and tongue elevation and for the phones in "<u>cake</u>", "<u>th</u>umb", "<u>h</u>ouse", and "<u>m</u>oose" fell within the range of acceptability but was outside the range for all other features and phones. This suggested that groups of judges can generally make reliable judgments.

Validity for the features of time, tongue shape, and tongue elevation, plus the phones in "<u>c</u>ake" and "<u>s</u>eal". fell within the range of acceptability, which suggested that, as a group, judges can make valid judgments about all the above aspects when using the auditory and visual information of a full face videotape.

Further investigations could be carried out to determine whether a longer and more specific training program would result in greater reliability of individual judges when performing the judgment task. In particular, it would be beneficial to include in such a training program more information and experience in recognizing primary and secondary articulations of phones; more graphic representation of the rating scale to be used by marking the scale points on a model or chart; and consideration of reducing the points of the rating scale for the anterior oral region so that judges are not required to make such fine discriminations. It would also be interesting to find out whether the reliability and validity of the individual judgments would be affected if the model

or chart of the scale points in the oral region were available to the judges throughout the evaluation period.

REFERENCES

- Barker, J. <u>The Arizona Articulation Proficiency Scale</u>, Western Psychological Services, 1963.
- Compton, A. "Generative Studies of Children's Phonological Disorders", Journal of Speech and Hearing Disorders, XXXV (1970), 315-339.
- Cooper, F.S., P.C. Delattre, A.M. Liberman, J.M. Brost and L.J. Gertsman. "Some Experiments on the Perception of Synthetic Speech Sounds", <u>Journal of the Acoustical Society of America</u>, (1952), pp. 597-606.
- Daniloff, R. and K. Moll, "Coarticulation of Lip Rounding", Journal of Speech and Hearing Research, XI (1968), 707-721.
- Fant, G.M. "Descriptive Analysis of the Acoustic Aspects of Speech", Logos, V (1962), 3-17.
- Haas, W. "Phonological Analysis of a Case of Dyslalia", <u>Journal of</u> <u>Speech and Hearing Disorders</u>, XXVIII (1963), 239-246.
- Irwin, O.C. "Infant Speech: Consonant Sounds According to Place of Articulation", Journal of Speech and Hearing Disorders, XII (1947), 397-401.
- "Infant Speech: Consonant Sounds According to Manner of Articulation", Journal of Speech and Hearing Disorders, XII (1947), 402-404.

"Infant Speech: Development of Vowel Sounds", <u>Journal</u> of Speech and Hearing Disorders, XIII (1948), 31-34.

- Jakobson, R., G. Fant, and M. Halle. "Preliminaries to Speech Analysis", Acoustics Laboratory, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Technical Report No. 13, 1952.
- Miller, G. and A. Nicely. "An Analysis of Perceptual Confusions Among Some English Consonants", <u>Journal of the Acoustical Society</u> of America, XXVII (1955), 338-352.
- National Council on Radiation Protection and Measurement. "Medical X-ray and Gamma-ray Protection for Energies up to 10 MeV. Equipment Design and Use", NCRP Publication, P.O. Box 4867, Washington, D.C.
- Noll, J.D. "Articulatory Assessment", <u>American Speech and Hearing</u> <u>Association</u>, Report #5, 1970.
- Perkell, J. "Physiology of Speech Production; Results and Implications of a Quantitative Cineradiographic Study", Research Monograph 53. Cambridge: MIT Press, 1969.

- Peterson, G. and J. Shoup. "A Physiological Theory of Phonetics", Journal of Speech and Hearing Research, IX (1966), 5-67.
- Reed, M. "An Analysis of Developmental Articulation Errors on the Basis of Distinctive Features: A Procedural Study". Unpublished Manuscript, University of Montana, 1970.
- Snow, K. "A Comparative Study of Sound Substitutions Used by 'Normal' First-grade Children", Speech Monographs, XXXI (1964), 135-141.
- Subtelny, J.D., R.M. McCormack and A.J. Cichoke. "Cineradiographic and Pressure-flow Analysis of Speech before and after Pharyngealflap Surgery", Plastic Reconstructive Surgery, XLIV (1969), 336-344.
- Templin, M.C. "Certain Language Skills in Children: Their Development and Interrelationships". <u>Institute of Child Welfare Monograph</u> Series, No. 26. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press, 1957.

and F.L. Darley. <u>The Templin-Darley Tests of Articulation</u>. Iowa City, Iowa: Bureau of Educational Research and Service Extension Division, 1960.

Wellman, B.L., I.M. Case, I.G. Mengert, and D.E. Bradbury, "Speech Sounds of Young Children", <u>University of Iowa Studies in Child</u> <u>Welfare</u>, V, No. 2 (1931). APPENDIX A

SCRIPT OF TRAINING SESSION

Purpose of the Study

The purpose of the study is twofold. We wish to see whether it is possible for judges, who have received some training, to make judgments reliably about certain articulatory distinctive features using the auditory and visual information of a full face videotape and an x-ray videotape of the oral region. If such reliability is possible, then the information from the x-ray videotape will be used to validate the judgments made from the full face videotape.

On the tapes you will see several children, aged five to nine years, who were filmed mispronouncing some words. The full face tape and the x-ray tape depict exactly the same words as they were said simultaneously.

Procedure for Judgments

First of all an hour will be spent in training you to make the type of judgments which are necessary for this study, and then you will be shown the experimental tapes and asked to make specific judgments on the sounds indicated. The experimental tapes have been made so that you will see and hear the word 10 times at 30-second intervals. This will allow you ample time to make thoughtful judgments.

I would ask you to then return in a week's time to make similar judgments on some tapes.

Distinctive Feature Scheme

The features which have been chosen for use in this study were

ones which would be most relevant to a lateral x-ray view of the oral region. Going through each of the features as they appear on your judgment forms, I will explain and demonstrate what is meant.

Rating Scale. Each feature is rated on a 1 to 7 scale in order to make the system more capable of describing individual differences. On the same "4" represents "normal", "1" represents being "too little" or "too far forward anteriorly with reference to the oral cavity"; "7" represents being "too much", "too late", or "too far back posteriorly". The points in between represent gradations on that continuum. As we go through the features, I will describe how you would rate specific elements.

<u>Time</u>. The time feature is broken into three sections: onset, nucleus, and offset. Onset would refer to one element of the feature bundle which occurred either too early or too late in relation to the other elements in the bundle. For example, in this production of /mi/ the lip closure element of the feature bundle of the phone /m/ occurs too soon.

*Demonstrate three times.

If you were describing that on the judgment form, it would be rated as "onset--1". Conversely, you could have the lip closure on that sound occurring too late in relation to the other elements.

*Demonstrate three times.

In that instance you would describe it as "onset--7". Nucleus is concerned with the central or nucleus part of the sound, whereas offset is concerned with the termination of the elements in the feature bundle.

Listen to the /1/ in the word $/b\varepsilon 1/$.

*Demonstrate three times.

In that instance the voicing of the sound was continued too long, and so would be rated as "offset--7" on the judgment form. Watch and listen to the /mi/ on the training tape as the child says /Its @ pIt@ @v mi/ and rate those two sounds for the time feature.

*Play training tape giving four presentations of the phrase, followed by discussion.

<u>Transition Speed</u>. This feature is relevant to the context in which the phone is found. It will first of all be governed by the specific context within the word, i.e. whether it is vowel/consonant, consonant/vowel, or glide. Having decided upon that aspect, the next task is to rate it on the scale. An example of normal transition speed between the /t/ and the /i/ is shown on the next section of tape.

*Demonstrate three times and discuss. The next piece of tape gives an example of abnormal transition speed; rate the /h/ in /h**ə**t/.

*Play training tape four times followed by discussion.

<u>Place</u>. In this section you will describe the actual place of articulation. You should always describe what you consider to be the primary or most important point of articulation. In order to make these features as fine as possible, again each one is rated on the 1 to 7 scale. Listen to the way I say the /k/ in /kAp/.

*Demonstrate twice and discuss.

Now listen to the /d/ in $/d_p/$ and note that the /d/ is not made alveolarly but instead is rather dental and quite far forward so that in this instance it would be rated as "dental--2".

*Play training tape three times and discuss.

<u>Tongue part</u>. This feature is rated in a similar manner, once you have decided which part of the tongue was used. The terms tip, blade, and dorsum are used to designate these areas.

*Demonstrate by a sketch on the chalk board.

Listen to the /d/ in /dp/ again and note that here the place of articulation is with the tip of the tongue, but that it is rather far back on the tip and would therefore be rated as "tip--5".

*Play training tape three times.

<u>Tongue shape</u>. For this feature, the decision must first be made whether the tongue is retroflexed or forward in the mouth. The term forward is used to describe any position other than retroflexed.

*Demonstrate three times.

Once you have made that decision you must then judge the position on the rating scale. Listen to the /s/ in $/s \wedge n/$ and rate the tongue shape.

*Demonstrate three times and discuss.

<u>Tongue elevation</u>. The height of the tongue is the last feature included. Listen again to the /t/ in /ti/. The sound is not as "crisp" as you would expect and therefore the tongue elevation is not quite as high as would normally be expected. It would therefore be rated as "3".

*Play training tape two times and discuss.

<u>X-rays</u>. The x-ray tapes are to be evaluated in a similar way as the full face tapes. Look at this tape to see some of the oral landmarks.

*Play training tape of x-rays without sound while describing all the areas.

The x-rays will give you more information particularly about tongue part, shape, and elevation. When the tongue tip moves outside the oral cavity, the tip is sometimes masked by the teeth. Look at this example of /ba0/ where the /0/ becomes a dental /t/.

*Play training tape four times.

You can see how the tongue is partially flattened out and moves forward. The elevation of the tongue is as would be expected for that sound and the tongue shape is forward. The tongue part which is used is the tip, although it is articulated rather posteriorly on the tip. This sound

would be rated as:	place	dental 2
	shape	forward 3
	part	tip 5
	elevation	4

Now listen to the /k/ in $/d_k/$ and rate it for all features.

*Play training tape to show these x-rays 10 times and then discuss. Listen to the /s/ in /sil/ and do the same thing.

*Play training tape to give the word 10 times and then discuss. Now listen to the /k/ in /ki/ and judge that sound for all features.

*Play the full face training tape 10 times and then discuss. Are there any other questions before we start the judgments on the experimental tapes?

APPENDIX B

с.

Table 6. Scale Values for Each Feature, Each Phone, and Each Mode of Presentation of the Experimental Tapes. Cake.

	Tim	ne (Onsel	:	Tim	ne -	Nuc	leus	Tir	ne - (Afse	Ŀ	Tran	sition	n Spa	soq
	ISI SUSE	- hil wa x-n2	r listing	ind son = fullin	125 505	Dalies X Ory	12rsiss Hillian	Hilling	listisos Xinių	this is	ين نزرار ال منا - المنة	ક ગુસ્તી છે. સંચીડિય	1969825	indsens X-au	Jakaes Hullon	And ser. hullan
A	NR	5	NR	5	5	4	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5΄	5	4
В	5	4	١	1	4	4	4	4	NR	5	NR	5	5	11	9	Q
C	NR	3	3	ຊ	NR	б	4	4	NR	4	3	5	Ne	I	4	3
D	2	J	2	2	4	5	4	5	হ	2	NR	4	2	J	2	NR
E	NR	2	2	2	5	2	4	5	6	ରୁ	3	3	6	5	Q	5
F	4	NR	4	3	3	NR	3	5	NR	2	5	4	5	ລ	19	3
G	4	4	3	2	NR	5	5	í	3	5	NR	ઝ	5	5	3	ર
H	5	2	NR)	5	З	5	3	5	3	5	3	3	4	4	3
5	4	NR	Q	3	2	4	4	Q	2	2	4	3	4	3	2	3
K	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4
L	5	6	2	6	4	4	4	4	NR	4	4	4	5	4	2	4
M	4	4	4	3	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	3	4
N	4	4	2	4	4	4	4	4	4	NR	5	4	4	2	4	4
0	5	6	3	4	4	4	4	4	4	6	4	2	4	6	б	4
19	5	3	3	3	4	4	4	4	5	3	5	4	4	13	3	5
Q	.5	3		<u> </u>	4	4	4	4	4	_4_	4	<u> </u>	3	4	3	4
X	4.25	3.75	2.8	3.06	4.00	4.00	413	3.88	4.00	3.69	4.19	3.75	H.20	H. 94	4.19	3.60

	Pla	دو			100	gue	Part		Ton	gue	Shap	ie.	Ton	guet	Eleve	tion
	Istsiss Xoray	Shilisis X-Miy	1st sees	Solve -	Keses	Indexs	s list jus tull fice	Ind seis	15+56 2017-11	stationss y-racy	fullious	the part	151-6215	thoses.	4.11 414	Prof 2005
A	37	39	34	35	8	6	3	6	4	4	4	4	5	4-	4	5
B	22	27	31	28	2	7	7	2	ຊ	ł	2	Q	3	6	7	1
ē	33	37	37	37	5	9	10	B	2	Q	2	ସ	3	6	5	6
D	39	37	37	39	11	10	10	10	2	2	2	2	6	nib	3	5
E	31	32	31	34	5	5	5	6	2	4	5	4	3	6	4	4.
F	34	34	27	34	6	6	6	NR	2	3	6	8	5	6	5	2
G	22	31	25	33	z	ં	4-	4-	2	4	4	4	3	4	3	4
H	31	26	33	26	8	5	5	5	3	6	3	4	4	6	4	4
J	33	32	32	30	5	5	5	4	5	3	4	2	3	6	5	3
K	19	25	97	26	5	7	Ч	3	2	3	3	2	र	4	NR	5
	27	34	32	ර්ඩ	6	11	NR	11	3	3	2	Q	4	6	Ь	6
Μ	27	24	ઉરી	26	10	12	13	10	4	থ	4	3	3	4	4	4
N	ิ่ มี7	31	33	39	1	6	10	7	3	4	3	4	3	6	4	5
Q	44	30	41	30	15	8	12	13	3	4	4	Q	5	6	4	5
6	27	62	35	28	3	16	13	5	3	3	3	3	3	6	4	5
2	138	22.21	<u>33.</u> 2011	33	i) hdulu	763	<u>h</u> 172	10	11	<u> </u>	NK	<u>NR</u>	4	- <u>- 1</u> - - <u>- 1 1</u> -	<u> </u>	<u> 10K</u>
x	30.06	33.31	32.44	31.44	6.44	763	7173	6.93	3.31	3.69	340	3.90	3.88	- 5.13	440	4.5

Lamb.

	Tir	ne_(Onse	Ł	Tim	ne- (Vucl	eris	Tim	ne - C	offset	5	Tra	nsitic	in Sp	peed
	192 sess vertices	Soches 4- Fing	fuller	Ind see	Ist cus	Julias X-mir	i lit sees	the tices	Ist services	2ndseus K-ruy	hillou	Incluse Fulliace	listicus 4 ray	201155:00 	tullea	Prities.
A	3	2	I	3	3		2	2	3		- UR	3	3	18	3	16
B	6	1	1	J	6	1	I	1	NR	NR	4	6	1	I	20	1
C	5	5	5	1	5	2	Q	3	5	4	5	5	5	. 5	19	6
Þ	3	4	3	2	4	3	4	2	4	5	NR	5	4	5	4	6
E	3	6	6	6	5	6	6	6	5	6	4	6	5	হ	7	4
F	3	3	5	4	3	3	5	4	5	4	5	3	3	5	3	3
G	4	3	NR	ما	3	6	4	6	NR	ما	NR	2	17	5	18	20
H	4	2	ି କ	2	3)	3	1	4	2	२	Q	4	3	17	2
17	4	3	3	3	5	4	4	4	4	4	4	3	5	4	4	16
K	4	4	3	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	6	4	5	4
L	6	4-	6	2	4	5	4	2	7	5	4	2	7	క	6	16
M	5	5	ร	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	5	17
N	7	2	6	6	7	2	حا	6	7	ລ	2	6	6	1	7	4
0	NR	, L	5	4	4	6	4	4	4	6	3	4	4	ما	6	4
14	6	6	5	5	3	3	5	4	3	3	4	3	6	NR	6	2
R	6	3	5	3	0	3	4	~	2	3	<u> </u>	3	5	3	6	3
X	H-56	3.36	3.44	3:5%	431	3 35	3.14	3.20	4.50	4.00	2.54	2-31	5.31	4.13	8.30	1.15

	Plo	ice			Ton	gue	Parl	د	100	igue	Sha	pe	100	gue	Eleva	tion
	istsos X·riu	Shelses	list was hullow	Actives fuller	list sess racy	Indias X. rug	i listissis kulltare	Indices hilling	12 SUS	Proteins 1 May	totiess touten	Ballass Fallace	1:32 5451 X-014	Indus	ist seus	Prisess
A	34	30	24	5	13	NR	NR	NR	4	4	NR	NR	4	1	i.	NR
В	34	33	5	14	8	q	16	15	5	হ	4	5	Ч	5	5	4
G	27	12	8	9	1	NR	NR	NR	6	4	5	4	2	2	3	1
D	34	NR	39	4	1)	1	10	ł	9	4-	9	3	2	1	2	1
E	41	23	3	5	21	হ	೩೦	19	7	4	6	6	4	Q	5	4
F	38	63	30	6	Q	<i>8</i> 0	J	16	1	9	6	6)	ର	5	ຊ
G	41	34	17	23	20	13	3	6	5	ł	4	4	6	6	4	4
H	34	33	9	13	13	3	3	5	5	3	NR	5	4	3	2	క
5	30	36	32	NR	5	Ð	5	4	3	3	4	4	2	3	5	1
ĸ	39	NR	33	4	10	i)	5	NR	10	2	Q	R	7	1	6	5
L	38	ર્ડે	4	6	10	1)	6	3	4	4	6	3	5	6	4	3
Μ	28	3ર્ડ	27	6	12	13	NR	NR	4	6	4	4	4	2	2	4
\mathbb{N}	40	42	30	1	14	9	12	NR	7	ર્ગ	5	4	র্ত	5	7	5
0	27	4	39	4	2	NR	1)	NR	3	4	4	4	NR	4	6	4
P	31	29	રડ્	30	7	ร	7	ଟୁ	2	8	12	12	3	3	3	3
Q	5	<u> </u>	4	40	NR	NR	NR	18	11	4	4	NR	4	1		NR
$\overline{\mathbf{x}}$	32.56	ম্ব-৫০	21:50	11 33	9.93	9.00	2.33	8.00	5.38	4.19	5.36	4.57	4.00	281	3.81	3.99

.

Turtle.

	Tim	e-0	nset		Tim	10 - N	lucie	us	Tin	ne- (Offse	Ł	Trac	nsiti	on Sp	pard
	istsiss X-rily	Jacks A-my	u listises: trefficie	Chalssis <u>Antises</u>	lsksess Xiray	Sincises	tialliere	Fulling	195:201	Indians X. C. u	litic-s Addition	که را به در معالین	Ktock 7 Cont	122126	e potespos	رباغ (جار منا المدينة
A	4	5	4	5	4	5	4	4	4	5	3	4	4	10	, 4	4
B	NR	4	4	4	4	4	5	4	NR	4	NR	4	4	4	6	L
C	3	ຊ	Q	Ź	5	4	5	4	3	3	ସ	5	3	3	3	ହୁ
Ð	2	2	Q	3	4	5	3	6	2	.3	2	3	2	J	Ð	3
E	3	2	ว	\mathcal{Q}	3	Q	4-	5	3	R	వి	হ	16	9	16	2
F	3	NR	1	2	5	3	3	3	5	3	ຊ	3	5	16	16	17
G	NR	3	3	3	<u> </u>	4	NR	4.	NR	5	6	ธ์	9	9	3	10
H	4	2	6	4	4	3	5	4	4	వి	5	4	10	3	NR	17
5	12	4	1	6	4	4	4	6	4	4	4	4	15	18	15	4
K	4	5	4	4	4	5	4	14	4	5	4	4	4	3	3	4
	3	6	2	6	4	4	4	4	2	4	Ì	4	2	4	C	4
M	4	6	2	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	Q	4	4	17	4	11
N	5	4	1	4	4	4	3	4	4	L.	4	4	18	9	Ĭ	9
0	4	3	2	4	4	4	4	4	5	Q	6	6	10	q	9	10
ρ	5	3	5	ų	5	4	6	Ц	6	5	ରୁ	3	3	4	3	10
Q	3	_5_	<u></u>	.3	3	_5_	2	<u>.</u>	3		<u> </u>	3	3	5	<u></u>	3
X.	3.56	375	2.69	3.75	406	11-00	4.00	4.19	3.31	3.75	3.85	3.88	7.00	1.81	5.93	'7 Ob

	PIC	166.			Ton	oue	fact		Ton	gue	Sina	pe	100	one	Elen	ation
	Istsiss K-MLY	Jaduess Jaduess	ist sever fullificade	And sess	1585035 * 1944	Unders E-ray	isteses tullfu	Tultau	istiscus stray	Shilles X-ray	list server try Iller	hillble	ઉપ્ટર્સ્ટ માગ-દ	<u>к</u> кишере <u>Х. ГСЧ</u>	1stscos fulltau	Jan 923
A	40	37	31	34	13	12	5	5	4	4	5	4	4	4	4	4
B	36	38	37	35	8	14	19	6	3	3	6	2	5	5	3	2
C	36	38	31	34	10	10	6	9	5	4	2	3	7	5	5	5
D	39	39	39	37	11	14	- 11	9	2	3	2	2	5	4	2	2
E	37	34	33	30	7	7	5	6	2	3	4	6	5	6	4	5
F	37	NR	30	37	7	6	6	6	4	3	9	6	5	5	3	3
G	37	34	32	31	ه)	6	4	4	6	4	3	4	5	4	4	4
H	23	31	32	34	6	6	10	6	9	2	ક	3	6	3	5	হ
5	31	36	૩ર	30	5	q	13	6	4	4	4	R	5	6	4	3
ベ	36	30	42	32	NR	12	2	9	3	3	3	3	6	5	6	6
L	32	34	34	34	17	9	6	11	3	3	4	51	6	6	-4	5
Μ	30	33	36	31	10	[]	9	10	3	6	4	5	3	4	4	4
N	37	36	33	30	13	1	12	5	6	7	10	3	7	5	5	6
0	40	42	35	29	13	20	6	8	NR	6	ર્ક	3	7	6	4	3
4	36	36	31	NR	11	9	10	6	4	3	6	4	5	6	4	3
Q	34	33	34	33	8	1.2	NR	5	5	_5_	11	<u>)9</u>	5	5	5	<u>NR</u>
X	35.00	3540	3 3 .68	52.73	4.27	106	8.21	6.88	4.20	3.44	5.19	4 00	5.38	4.44	4.13	03.01

Table 6. Continued.

Thumb.

	Tim	ne - C	Inset		Tii	me-	Nuc	leus	Tir	ne -	Offse	26	Tra	nsitu	g? n'c	eec)
	K aug	Shid as	nadel e tulita	tuiltai	istses k-rug	Ordses X-1024	ta seis fullfall	Indsess fullace	ictures X-Ruy	Dictses x-ruy	s liksen fullar	2dx× hillian	1565155	the second	s retrais	Pad sex Hullace
A	NR	3')	4	1	2	2	3	ଟ୍ୟ	NR	ฎ	4	3	3	17	18
B	4	1	1	5	হ	Q	NR	4	NR	4	NR	3	1	1	2	3
C	6	5	4	5	6	4	rsR.	4	5	4	5	5	.5	5	5	6
G	2	3	4	ຊ	4	3	4	5	র্ত	5	NR	5	12	ર	19	5
E	3	2	6	হ	4	6	6	5	5	6	6	6	3	6	6	6
F	2	5	5	5	6	3	NR	3	7	5	4	5	14	5	3	4
G	2	3	3	NR	4	6	NR	6	NR	6	NR	న	3	3	2	6
H		z	1	3	67	3	হ	4	2	S S	ર્ગ	3	3	3	17	16
5	2	4	4	4	Q	2	6	4	Q	ನ್ನ	6	L	18	16	- 19	16
K	4	2	4	4	4	ý	4	4	4	2	4	4	4	1)	3	4
L	6	4	6	6	4	4	4	6	6	4	6	6	20	18	20	20
Μ	2	5	ຊ	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	NR	4	4	18	4	18
N	6	7	7	6	6	7	5	6	9	7	7	6	/	3	7	6
0	3	3	3	4	4	4	4	4	2	Š	5	4	3	2	4	4
β	6	5	.4	4	5	4	NR	4	4	5	5	3	5	12	5	Ý E
$\left \frac{1}{x} \right $	381	3.56	3.75	<u> </u>	5 3.94	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	- <u>-</u> 4.44	<u> </u>	4.13	<u> </u>	419	6.50	7.13	8.63	8.81

	Pic	re			Tor	Jane	Yar!	<u>د</u>	Ton	que	Shap	se	MO.	que	Eleu	atin
	tet sess	Indust x-ruy	hullreus	photoese authors	15t505 4-1(m	shelsis * CL-1	hit ris nullicu	Lillier talita	istisess * ray	Sodars.	istera fulline	tillau	152505	the ser	fullkill	tullieus tullieus
A	38	99	3	5	12	13	NR	NR	4	4	ຊ	NR	ର୍	NR	2	2
B	39	ය	2	2	18	20	19	MR	5	6	5	NR	6	6	6	MR
C	10	12	8	9	1	NR	NR	6	7	5	5	5	হ	J ·	ຊ	4
\mathfrak{D}	4	4	4	4	NR	1	NR	t	7	6	5	6	ຊ	Ì	ຊ	1
E	27	4	হ	4	5	5	NR	S	6	5	4	3	1	4	3	2
F	40	5	29	51	19	20	3	16	J	3	వి	6	2	3	1	ని
G	40	13	13	14	17	20	5	NR	୬	4	5	NIR	5	6	6	NR
H	31	31	3	3	10	6	17	NR	6	2	NR	NR	3	3	2	NR
5	29	39	53	NR	4	18	NR	1)	4	NR	4	4		- 4	1	হ
K	4	ລ	4	4	NR	NR	NR	NR	9	2	2	2	2	2	ງ	1
L	5	3	4	3	NR	NR	NR	11	4	4	4	4		6	4	5
M	36	4	5	5	NR	NR	NR	NR	NR	4	NR	7	NR	4	NR	ನ
N		1	4	1	17	NR	NR	NR	6	5	3	3	7	6	3	হ
0	4	4	4	ని	NR	NR	NR	NR	NR	4	NR	4	MR	5	NR	6
ρ	41	5	NR	ຊ	18	12	NR	NR	5	3	3	İ	4	3	ຊ	ર
Q	14	4	5		NR	20	<u></u>	NR	4	NIR	4	4	4	NR	<u></u>	<u> 4 </u>
x	9.53	12.06	953	13.50	12.10	13:50	11.00	783	5.07	14.07	3.61	425	321	393	226	2.69

Table 6. Continued.

House.

	Time-Onset				Tim	1e-N	luch	LUS	Tim	ie-O	ffse	۲	Trar	rsitic	<u>sin Sf</u>	n Speed			
	4-564	Sugar, K	s istsen tulltas	Chalices Full true	122 5125 X.C.W	shilses X-ray	ربعد ادار منطقان	s theyers	1525455	Ind sess Victur	Listesesi Lillitare	- 4 1 5 2 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	Kitses X-rivy	2111523	tullais	Full face			
A	NR	ູ່	2	3		1	2	3	1	2	3	rdr	10	10	11	10			
B	+	ł	2	જુ	1	1	NR	i	NIR	J	5	1	6	8	14	14			
C	11	3	3	3	2	3	4	5	Г	4	3	З	8	11	q	9			
D	11	2	1	ຊ		3	i	1		5	NR	6	8	16	8	9			
E	4	4	NR	3	6	6	4	4	7	6	3	4	9	9	10	9			
F	7	4	4	3	7	3	6	3	7	5	<u>ما</u>	3	19	10	17	10			
G	1 1	వ	NR	4		<u>ل</u>	3	6	1. 1	6	NR	6	14	9	12	11			
H)	3	1		2	2	1		NR	3	1	8	IS	10	9			
12	4	ຊຸ	4	2	6	NR	6	ସୁ	2	1	5	2		8	1)	4			
Ιĸ	4	4	6	4	4	3	Į	3	4	3	3	3		9	13	U			
14	4	4	3	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4		11	10				
M	4	4	4	NR	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	INK	16	1)	<u>।</u> भ			
N	7	NR	5	4	7	1	3	4	7	1	5	4	8	8	1) 11	11			
0	14	5 r	5	3	5	4	3	ý,	6	6	3	3		4	11	10			
P	4	う 1	۲ ک	5	5	3	4	4	3	3	5	4		12	11	13 11			
	4	<u>)</u> 300	<u></u>	4	14 11 N	2	25	<u>4</u> 300	<u>4</u> 11.21	310	D LLN	3.50	1010	10	11.95	11-10-51-			
LX.	10.44	500	5.15	0.17	1406	<u>٦ الن</u>	0.00	<u></u>	14.01	0.01	4 00			10001		, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0,			
	2009														,				
	Plai	ce			Kcar	4110	Part		Ton	que	27-04	26	Kon	queE	eleina	Fiori			
	Plan Vistesus	ટ ૯_ ગ્રેલ્વેડમ્પ્ર	Astores Fillipe	fails:	TCAN Istans	ane Indsen	Part	s Inclass fulloc	Tor Istsen 4-ralu	21.1.2 S	Stricif Kstress hullfau	Je Jedicess	TC.C.	gue E States	eleira Idigras	FLOR Julius Fullfor			
A	Plan Kolesass X-rem 117	<u>се</u> Эгдсея У Гау ЦП	telliter P	fails: fuils: 10	7000 1525355 2010 219	ane Indsen X- My	Part Tsi-yes fullow NR	: fuller NR	Tor 15k5ew 1-ray 3	ane a Inderso K-ray	Strice Kstress fullfrau MR	De Indiess Fullar NR	1000 152505 2-1004	gile E Statses Viay	eleina lakarus liillen l	FLOR Harris Hallbur 2			
AB	Plan 1525055 2-7044 47 48	2 <u>e</u> Dedues Dedues Dedues HT Hb	185555 1911 1911 1911 1911	20122 20122 10 10	Tone 1525055 2-19 19	ane Didson X-My 16 17	Part Istra fullou NR 21	And Fulley NR NR	Tor Istsey Fray 3 3	ans Shilsess K-ray 6	Strice Ketsess hullfree NR 7	De Sindfiess Fuller NR NR	7000 150505 2-100 1 2	gue E Shirss 2-my 1 6	-14172 1245035 1411100 1 2	Fiori Filles 2 NR			
ABe	Plan 1525055 147 148 59	20 2013203 201320 201000 201320 201000 2010000000000	9 24 13	Fritz Fritz 10 12 11	19 17 21	ane Adson X- my 16 17 4	Part fulle NR 21 NR	NR NR NR NR	Tor Istsey 3 3 6	Actor Andress X-ray 6 6 4	Stricip hultra NR 7 5	De Malless MR NR 3	7000 155005 1-100 2	gue E Stars 2 ray 1 6	-leira lainen linten l 2 6	tion tion tilles 2 NR 2			
ABOD	Plan 192503 47 47 48 59 22	2 e 2rdses 4 Cay 47 46 13 11	9 24 13 8	22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22	19 17 21 1	ane Endson X: My 16 17 4	Parte Large Autor NR 21 NR NR NR	NR NR NR NR NR NR	100 196583 1-ray 3 3 6 11	21.12 2hdisess x-ray 6 6 4 5	NR 7 5 4	De Januar MR NR NR S 5	7000 151505 1 2 2 2	9105 201853 2019 1 6 6 2	-16172 1235755 1611100 1 2 6 1	tioned R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R			
ABODE	Place 47 47 48 59 22 61	2 e 2 cdses 4 5 cdy 47 46 13 11 47	9 24 13 8	10 11 12 13 11 12 13	Texis 19 17 21 19 17 21	2119 27 Charles 27 Charles 16 17 14 11 13	Part Fuilt NR 21 NR NR NR 19	NR NR NR NR NR 20	705 152563 +ray 3 3 6 11 6	2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012	NR 7 5 4 4	NR NR NR NR S 5 b	700 1950 1 2 2 2 4 4 1 2 2 6	9110 E Stars 2 may 1 6 2 6	-leina 149035 111100 1 2 6 1 4	Filler AR 22 OK			
ABODUL	Plan 1925 47 48 59 22 61 41	2 e 2 rdses 47 46 13 11 47 65	9 24 13 8 11 2	5 5 1 5 0 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	Torian 19 17 21 19 19 17 21 19 20	ALC ACAN IL IT II II I3 20	Part Huite NR 21 NR NR 19 2	NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR N	700 152502 2007 3 3 6 11 6 10	21.12 2.12255 2.12255 2.1225 2.12555 2.12555 2.12555 2.12555 2.12555 2.12555 2.12555 2.12555 2.125555 2.125555 2.125555 2.125555555555	NR 7 5 4 2	De 182 NR NR 3 5 6 3	1 22 2 1 2 2 2 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	9110 E Stars 1 6 2 6 3	-10172 1025125 1111001 1 2 6 1 4 2	C 22 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2			
ABODUFS	Place H7 H7 48 59 22 61 H1 H0	20 20 30 47 46 13 11 47 47 55 37	9 24 13 8 11 2 10	10 12 10 10 12 11 12 13 13 13 13 13	Yerry 19 17 21 19 20 8	2110 2130 16 17 14 11 13 20 12	Part 12012 NR 21 NR 19 20 NR	20 18 18 18 18	700 15tseay 3 3 6 11 6 10 2	21.12 2 Adamy 4-Ruy 6 6 6 4 5 6 3 3	NR 7 5 4 4 2 4	De. 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 10	1 2 2 2 5 4	9110 E Starsy 1 6 2 8 3 6	-10172 1225-122 1226-122 1226-122 1226-122 1226-122 1226-122 1226-1226 1226-1206 1226-1206 1226-1206 1206	5 22 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2			
ABODEFGH	Р100 47 48 59 22 61 40 23	2 e 2 rdses 4 7 46 13 11 47 65 37 41	9 24 13 8 11 2 10 9	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	Yori 19 17 21 19 20 20 20	ALLE D. d. Son I.L I.T I.L I.T I.L I.T I.L I.T I.L I.T I.L I.L I.T I.L I.T I.L I.L I.T I.L I.L I.L I.L I.L I.L I.L I.L	Parte NR 21 NR 21 NR 19 2 NR 19 2 NR NR	20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 2	Torises 1500 3 3 6 11 6 10 2 1	21.12 21.12	NR 7 5 4 4 2 4 0	De 1834 NR 35 63 4 NR	1 22 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	9112 5 20183 1 6 6 2 6 3 6 3	-1 express 1 2 6 1 4 2 5 2	C SE S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S			
ABODEFGHJ	P100 47 48 59 22 61 40 23 46	20 20 20 47 46 13 11 47 65 37 41 30	9 24 13 8 11 2 10 9 9	1021235101 2021235101	Yerry 19 17 21 19 20 29 18	aue Data 2 16 17 4 11 13 20 12 1	Partine NR 21 NR 19 2 NR NR NR NR	12 NR NR 90 6 18 R 4	700 13452 3 3 6 11 6 10 2 1 5	21122 2 2 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	NR 7 5 4 4 2 4 0 4	De TR R 35 63 4 R 4	1 3 2 2 4 5 4 - 5	9112 E 201552 1 6 6 2 6 3 6 3 4	126142522	S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S			
ABODEFGHJK	Р100 47 48 59 22 61 40 23 40 40	202 201 201 201 201 202 201 202 201 202 201 202 201 202 202	943811209911	10212353019	Yor 12 19 17 21 19 20 8 9 18 21	110 110 110 110 110 110 110 110	Parte NR 21 NR 21 NR 19 2 NR NR NR NR NR NR	211 NR NR 90 6 8 RR 4 2	100 1523 3 3 6 11 6 10 2 1 5 13	2112 2112 2112 2112 2112 2112 2112 21 21	Strate RR 7 5 4 4 2 4 0 4 2	De 18 MR 35 63 4 NR 48	1 2 2 2 6 5 4 - 5 5	9112 5 1 6 6 2 6 3 6 3 4 3	261425222	S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S			
ABODEFGHJKL	P102 47 48 59 22 61 40 23 40 8	47 47 46 13 11 47 65 37 41 30 15 9	9 24 13 8 11 2 10 9 11 8	1235301199	705 19 17 21 19 20 29 18 21 NR	110 111 111 111 111 111 111 111 111 111	Partin 21 NR 21 NR 19 NR NR NR NR NR NR NR NR	1212 NR NR 9068842 NR 9068842 NR	700 1945 336116021534	2 1 1 2 2 4 1 4 5 6 3 3 2 4 1 9	Strate NR 7 5 4 4 2 4 10 4 2 4	De TR R 35 63 4 R 40 4	N 22 1 2 2 2 6 5 4 - 5 5 4	9112 5 1 6 6 2 6 3 6 3 4 3 2	12614252222	C 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2			
A P S C H R H R D S A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	P100 H7 48 59 22 61 40 23 40 82 32	47 47 46 13 11 47 46 13 11 47 55 37 41 30 15 9 37	9438120991180	29 P P I P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P	YCA 19 17 17 19 17 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19	aue 2 daving 16 17 11 13 20 12 11 11 7 4 9	Parter No 2 NR 19 2 NR NR NR NR NR NR	THR NR PO 6 KR 4 QR NR	Totay 1500 3 3 6 11 6 10 2 1 5 13 4 4	2112 2112 2112 2112 2112 2112 2112 211	STATER 7544240424	De 11 NR 35 63 4 NR 4 8 4 6	1 2 2 2 6 6 4 - 6 5 4 6	9112 9112	1261 1261 425222 N	S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S			
ABODEFGAJKJZZ	P102 H7 H8 59 22 61 H0 23 60 8 28 8 8 8 8	47 47 46 13 11 47 65 37 41 30 15 9 37 63	943811209911808	81991930199199189 199019919919919919	705 19 17 21 19 20 29 18 21 NR 11	110 117 117 117 117 117 117 17 17 17 17 17	Partie R I R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R	MARR NR 9068R42 NR NR	Totay 1500 3 3 6 11 6 10 2 1 5 13 4 4 4	2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012	Charles N 7 5 4 4 2 4 0 4 2 4 N R	De TR R 35 63 4 W 40 4 6 2	N 122 - 222 6 5 4 - 5 5 4 6 5	912 1 6 6 2 6 3 6 3 4 3 2 2 4	1261 4252222 NR	S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S			
ABODELGHJKIZO	P102 H7 489211 43 40 82 82 4 42 40 82 82 8 25	47 46 13 11 46 37 40 55 37 40 55 37 40 55 37 63 61	94381209918088	20212301991283	100 29 18 1 NI 1 2	110 117 117 117 117 117 117 117 19 117 19 117 19 117 19 117 117	POLICE R J R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R	THR R R P O 6 KR 4 Q R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R	100000000000000000000000000000000000000	2112 2112 2112 2112 2112 2112 2112 211	STATER 7544240424 R R R	20 11 NR 35 63 4 NR 40 46 24	N 1 2 2 2 6 5 4 - 5 5 4 6 5 7	1 2 2 2 2 4 3 4 3 2 2 4 5	12 61 4252 222 NRR	S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S			
ABODELGELXIX200	P1022 H7 4592 6 H 423 6 0 8 2 8 3 9 39	47 46 13 11 46 37 41 30 15 9 37 63 61 26	943812099180889	2021235301992838	YCHE 19 17 21 19 20 20 18 21 NR 11 12 14	11 1 4 1 3 0 2 1 1 7 4 9 N 4 1	PALER RER REP O RAR RAR RAR RAR RAR RAR RAR RAR RAR R	THR RR PO 6 8 R 4 2 R R R R I	100215336160215344425	2112 211 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 2	Character N 7 5 4 4 2 4 10 4 2 4 N N N 3.	20 1 N R 35 63 4 R 48 4 6 8 4 3	N 197 1 2 2 2 6 5 4 - 5 5 4 6 5 7 5	912 1 6 6 2 6 3 6 3 4 3 2 2 4 5 3	12 61 42 52 222 NRR 4	C S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S			
A B D D H H H H H H H H H H H H H H H H H	P102 H7 H7 H8 92 L1 H0 2 L0 H0 82 85 9 10	47 47 46 13 11 46 37 41 30 57 41 30 57 41 30 57 41 30 57 41 30 57 41 30 57 41 30 57 41 30 57 41 30 57 41 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40	9438120991808899	10 10 11 12 13 5 13 10 11 9 9 12 8 13 8 16	10000000000000000000000000000000000000	11 17 4 1 3 0 2 1 1 7 4 9 R 4 1 9	POLER R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R	THR RR R P O 6 KR 4 Q R R R R I R	100000000000000000000000000000000000000	2112 211 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 2	STATER 7544240424 NRR 34	20 11 NR 35 63 4 R 4 8 4 6 8 4 3 4	N 1 2 2 2 6 5 4 - 5 5 4 6 5 7 5 4	112121 - 6 6 2 6 3 6 3 4 3 2 2 4 5 3 5	101 1 2 6 1 4 2 5 2 2 2 2 N R R 4 5	S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S			
Seal

Table 6 Continued.

	Tim	e-Cn	set		Tim	ie-Ni	iclei	عد	Tim	e - 0	<i>H</i> fset	-	Trar	sitio	in St	need
	Kriscus V-ray	104 ville	hillio	كديمية (التحقية - 1) المذكلة المعالية - 1	131 21 33	200563		م من المراجد الم الم الم	istoci seriui	white w	ist sers	Julise 1	12203	Ind's	それて	
A	2	ริส	1	2	2	i	1	1	3	3	2	NR	3	3	10	3
B		ما	1	7	NR		6	1	NR	NR	2	1	NR	NR	j	М
e	3	2	5	3	5	4	4	5	2	3	3	4	2	NR	3	3
\mathbb{D}	5	2	52	2	4	5	3	5	NR	52	NR	5	2	র	4	2
E	1	Q	3	হ	2	2	Ľ	Q	2	S	3	J	3	2	3	2
F	3	4	a a	5	5	3	5	3	5	5	5	5	5	5	3	5
G	6	3	NR	4		ما	4	5	·NR	6	NR	5		6	4	5
H	3	5	3	6	2	2	າ	3	3	4	3	4	2	4	3	NR
5	4	3	4	3	4	4	4	3	4	4	4	4	4	4	5	4
K	4	3	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	3
٤	3	4	6	3	4.	2	4	3	4	NR	5	4	4	7	5	4
Μ	3	5	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	3
N	6	3	3	5	6	1	4	4	6	L.	3	4	6	MR	Z	3
0	6	6	6	3	5	4	5	4	5	5	5	3	5	Ó	4	4
ρ	4	3	3	6	5	4	4	5	3	5	4	5	4	6	5	5
Ø	4	<u> </u>	_5_	4	14	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4
$\overline{\mathbf{X}}$	3.63	3.56	3.50	3.44	13.81	3.19	381	3.20	3.81	3.75	3.69	3.88	3.53	4.73	4,30	3.80

	Pla	C.Q.			Ton	aire	fc.rl	,	100	gue s	shap	xe	Tong	jue E	leva	tion
	Ist sess with	Interior recur	Triskas Holi Tiy	Entraines	Hises	2 104 2 653	1515455 101713	2012814 - 111 704	Ist ses × ray	201545	5 1975 ×	1 Fullou	19250X	いいっち	111500	A desta
A	34	34	26	34	12	12	5	8	4	5	4	2	5	ما	ં ઈ	6
છ	22	37	36	23	6	18	6	9	1	5	5	11	6	6	7	NR
Q	25	24	40	34	5	2	10	3	2	4	5	5	6	5	5	4
D	34	37	33	37	10	11	6	11	4	5	ପ	2	6	6	3	6
Ē	40	30	33	32	18	4	5	6	6	2	5	3	5	6	4	3
F	23	40	24	33	7	6	10	5	6	3	3	5	6	5	3	3
G	16	2C	24	30	52	6	2	5	4	4	3	4	6	5	4	5
H	34	30	24	26	12	6	12	6	4	5	3	5	5	6	2	3
5	33	32	ઉા	30	5	4	5	5	6	4	4	3	5	4	5	3
K	26	26	28	26	9	U	হ	4	NR	3	2	2	5	5	5	5
L	34	34	26	33	9	11	6	11	3	2	3	3	5	6	3	6
М	32	31	32	30	13	10	10	10	2	3	4	3	5	6	4	б
N	35	ઉર્ડ	24	32	8	12	3	11	3	5	2	4	6	5	3	4
0	35	37	37	30	8	12	18	8	3	2	Q	2	5	5	6	6
ρ	28	29	33	30	7	7	7	6	3	5	3	4	3	NR	4	5
13	33	34	33	36	6	12	_6_	5	13	NR		12	NR	NR	4	NR
X	30.58	37-38	30.95	31.00	844	9.00	7.06	674	419	3.80	3.44	3.75	5.27	5.43	419	457
				•												

Table 6 Continued.

Glass

	Tin	ne-	SnC	et	TI	me-	Nu	cleus	Tin	ne-C	Dffs	et	Tra	nsiti	dn S	poc
	lst sess x- cou	2ndsass x-riciy	full frag	Interior in the fulling in	ist seas deriver	Jugars	Litses fullion	Fullicas	127555 X-RUJ	Jochans	fullface	and sea Julliace	1:151:35 X 1(1:4	A-11-1	rie lei	helico
A	2	2	Q	2	2	1	1	1	NR	NR	1	2	il		11	17
B		NR	1	1	6	Z	1	1	NR	NR	NR)	9	NR	13	13
C	5	4	5	4	3	3	3	4	5	6	5	5	12	12	12	10
D	2	4	1	4	1	2	1	2	NR	5	NR	6	11	11	10	13
Ē	4	2	J	ป	7	6	З	R	6	6	6	6	11	9	9	9
F	2	3	3	3	2	3	5	3	2	5	5	5		10	11	10
G	NR	7	NR	NR	र्घ	7	2	R	NR	7	6	Q	11	13	12	11
H	1	1	1	1	1	1	L	Q	3	1	2	え	12	9	9	10
J	4	4	4	4	4	1	7	4	4	1	7	g	1	9	11	11
K	6	4	5	4	3	3	え	Ì	3	2	L	2	10	4	12	4
L	4	3	4	3	4	1	4	6	4	7	6	6	11	11][13
Μ	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	3	4	4	4		NR		12
N	7	J	7	1	7	Q	7	1	П	2	7	1	13	3	13	8
0	6	4	J	4	4	4	3	4	4	6	4	2	12	4	QD	11
ρ	5	5	5	5	4	4	5	5	4-	3	3	2	11	9	10	9
Q	6	3		3	6	3	6	4	6	3	<u></u>	4	11	10	12	10
<u>I</u>	3.94.	<u> </u>	350	3.06	3.75	<u>2.94</u>	3.60	2.94	4.19	413	450	3.25	11.13	4.99	11.69	10.69

3 4 4 3 5 NR 2 3	street there there is the second and the second the sec
3 4 4 3 5 NR 2 3	2665
5 NR 2 3	~ ~ ~ ~
	6 NR 3 NR
3 3 5 3	3 4 3 3
4 5 11 4	2122
3465	3 5 2 5
4522	3 3 3 3
5 3 3 4	6444
2555	2 5 2 6
4 4 4 4	0424
2 3 10 3	3665
2232	4 4 4 -5
NR 5 NR 4	3 2 NR 4
3 5 5 3	3 3 4 3
4232	3466
9 6 10 4	2 5 3 5
6 IVK 4 12	6 NK 4 NK
	4524543243242 16235403R5304 545354325526R 5354325526R

Table 6. Continued.

Mage.

.

	Time	2 - 0	nset	-	Tir	ne-i	Jud	eus	Tin	ne - C	Afset	ν	Tras	nsitio	s'n G	base
	x ray	2nd 983 <u>x-ritu</u>	15t-spss tulligie	Indies	15151135	Julisers +10-4	istices's fulliog	trillian	1575815	and wi NGU4	kst sesi	that say	14565 X: Ciu	ઝેહ્રો જેડડ ≮વલ્પ્ય	Isters full au	الاركانية المركز المركز
A	4	4	4	4	4	3	4	3	NR	4	4	4		11	H	12
В	7	NR	Ż	NR	6	NR	4	4		NR	NR	5	12	NR	14	11
e	3	5	5	4	5	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	11	1)	q	11
D	2	Z	2	Q	3	5	ନ୍ଦ	5	3	3	NR	4	10	9	9	9
E	4	3	4	R	4	6	3	6	3	4	3	3	10	9	10	10
F	3	5	3	3	3	4	3	3	5	4	5	3	10	10	12	12
G	NR	5	NR	3	4	6	4	4	NR	6	NR	4	11	12	19	10
H	4	5	4	5	4	6	4	5	4	5	4	6		10R	11	4
12	4	4	4	4	4	ຊ	4	3	3	3	4	3			10	11
K	4	4	4	4	5	3	4	4	5	3	4	5	11	NR		11
L	5	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	12	11		11
M	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	5		12		12
N	4	5	4	4	4	Б	4	4-	4	5	4	4	IVR NO		р. Г.	
١0	4	3	4	4		3	LL	4	3	4	4	à		5	11 1	11
16	5	4	5	4	4	Ő	4	4	3		4	5		12	1 F	U H
₩	4 01-	4.06	3.81	318	1.13	4	3.9/	4- 11.11	3.63	Indo	开加	4-	10.86	10.69	10.58	10,81
LY.				001			<u> </u>	ср (<i>м</i> р	0.00	4 00	4 00			12107		

	110	Le			105	IGUR	Hark		10	gue	Shaf)Q.	Jour	juee	levat	non
	istsiss X:rcy	Shulses Statio	tetsess full-acc	Full face	12 years	Intsur	terspor .	shilles'	15533	And seas	Hyrsest Hullique	Charles .	Khais 4-mu	Jedser	hst iking tuniling	13/62
A	19	16	21	9	6	5	12	7	3		4	6	2	1	2	1
B	30	NR	34	36	7	NR	8	9	Ĩ	NR	1	1	1	NR	Ì	NR
C	12	11	10	13	2	3	1	NR	2	1	5	4	3	ł	1	2
D	18	17	16	17	4	2	}	g	4	5	l	2	وكم	2	5	2
E	12	24	30	24	Ţ	6	4	4	10	4	11	3	2	4	5	5
F	31	19	ما	NK	19	13	12	19	3	4	3	2	3	ຊື	3	2
G	30	22	31	23	6		11	00	2	1	4	5	5	20	4	3
H	19	17	20	9	- 11	5	12	3	11	4	C)	5	3	2	2	3
5	20	8	33	24	6	2	ڻ م	6	2	2	4	S	20	2	οί 2	3
K	25	16	<i>ଅ</i> /	17	7	ે	2	2	9	e L	à	\sim	à	2 2	3	3
	18	18	23	&o	4	4	5	à	2		3	1	4	2	4	4
M	26	26	J/	27	10	^v	11	6	3	S	4	3	6	4	4	3
N	16	16	23	21	6	6	2	10	3	1	1	1	\sim	2	3	4
0	22	20	23	20		8		5		3	J	4	2	4	6	2
19	9	Ч 00	34	30 00	5	1VK -2	8 1	4	3	3	3	3	3	4	3	3
2	28	1740	$\frac{30}{30}$	21.12	4	J. az	- 4	$\frac{1}{2}$	1	2 22	<u>-0</u> 	3	1775	X	4	1VN 9.86

APPENDIX C

J	71				t	<u></u>			<u> </u> 1
icition	בוייבטעטא	0.91 0.93	0.69 0.75	0.77	0.80 2.00 2.00	6.63 3.75	3.06 2.50	8 9 1 0	2.07 1.36
esent for "(3	r -	00	00			7 - 7	00	ဂ္၊
Cies D	٩	40	00	37	୬ଜ	,3 r	<u>5</u> %	00	m -
rta Epon	0		00	es ex .	es -	キョ	5-	- 9	
Discr	2	0 ର	00	1-	ণ ০	オテ	Τņ		m -
L Sec	Z	от	00	00	0 -	6-13	လက်	97 T	- 0
ndgn	1		00	10	7 ल	20	ו טי	00	m0
151.7	۲	00	00	00	00	- e-	er 7		
معهد	5	1	2 4	07	- T	797	07	क क	ન બ
Bet	I	φī	र द	ふら		55	30	m -	ଜ୦
strin.	9	07	1 +	631	0 -	7 00	мO	er 0	
le R entel	ы	1 -	। ल	17	ن أ	95	01	- 63	- ಲ
Pres	ω	10	r; -	70	70		0 _	er 1	30
ی م م	A	00		01	0.	ज़ ल	- 0	00	108
Full	υ	1 -	10	108	1-	0 1	न्द	00	0-
seren	භ	70	00		F 0	က်ပ	69	10	0.9
in of the contraction	٩	1 1	70	00	0-	ଗ –	وتوس	00	
067 51 00		X-ray Aultric	x-ay	x-ray fullfa	c-ray wilface	(-ray	c-ay uilince	rray ullface	בידטין הואהמנכ
D G		ישה - רטברך	ייטא ואחכרוב ן	line Util	Instrational	Place	Juffangios	por supro	Tonue Elentra
١							j		

5	iole r	e T		.ba								Sud	gmen	SÁ	crepo	م در دو د	o for	"Latio"
		æ	0	v	A	ш	L	ণ্ড	T	7	Y	1	Ī	З	0	c.	Ø	Interudic
709	4-12-X		-5	0		સ	0	7	ନ୍	Ţ	0	പ്പ	ę	Ņ	1	0	ς-	1.80
lime Oc	fuiter			۲. -	ī	0	-	1	0	0		+-	ମ	0	-	0	<u>ৰ্</u> ষ	1.20
inne Nutous	y mar	न ०	8-	က် –	7 98	- 0	07	୩୶	<i>લ</i> લ	70	00	-9	00	40	a0 .	ОТ	η- 1	1.81
Jos JD. Smil	x-ray	- 1	୦ୟ	TO	—)	- ସ	7 78	11	90	0 -	00	લેલ્ટ્ર	00	t- 1	<i>∞</i> -	07	ર છે	1.21
נונטייןי י י צייון	X-Tay	130	0 =	0 27	- ~	ကိုကို	ୠୄୄୄୄ	する	177	70	507	92 O	० ल	بئ بل	es 68 .	17	n n n	3.40 7,13
Place	X-thuy wilface	-17- -17-	70	¥-	ا بخ	5 - IC	२५ -24	و٦	- +	ا ف	1 82	ψa	<i>⊾</i> छ	ન કરુ	- <u>4</u> 3 -3	ふか	- 36	7.67 17.47
in que la l	x-ray	10	t e	10	9-6-	61-1-	11	r_{σ}	0-00	97	- 1	- ကိ	- 0	1 9	11	in the	01	الا. 1.50 1.50
aday moin	K-ray Willface	00	ų -	90 T	יף י	ώo	δO	さい	छ ।	00	80	0 %	ଜ୦	547	-0	- 0	E)	3.00 0.86
ألابوسكاوبدفن	x-ray	ή	9-	०%		~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	- ~	00	TM		27	<u> </u>	4 3	०७	ام	00	η. Γ	1.40

for Turkle.

DCIES FOR	Inter unde	9411	1.44	0.75	0. 87	1111	0.93	3.63	H-20	29.67 29.67 29.4	, ,	ي دي د دي ر	2.61	1.20	1.94	110.0	0.67
rubu	ଓ	જ	1	S	l	2	ļ	ମ୍ବ .	_		-	ଟ	ł	0		0	1
1 7:3	a	જ	ī	- -	es .		-	- 1	-	01		क-	4	(87		$\overline{\mathbf{v}}$
gmer	0	ī	Ś	0	0	ŝ	0 [.]	ī		0 7	9	<u>Σ</u> 0	r	10	אי	-	-
Sud	Z	ī	m	0	-	0	0	+,	×	14	с С	လို င	-	- 1		୍ଦୃ .	-
	Σ	ୠ	ы	0	0	00	אי	3	<u>-</u>	mΥ	,		-	<u>ო</u>		-	0
		ო	t	0	0	eya	R ²	ଟ	જ	ଟ ୦	>	<i>~</i> ,	0	0	י ק	0	-
	×		0	-	0	—	0	Ŧ	-	-9 C 7	2	1 1	-	0	0	7	0
	5	5	Q,	0	ଜ	0	0	3	7	50 9	8	71		0	-77	-	-
	I	γ_{i}	હ	-	T	ب ې -	1	5	1	୦୦ ଜ	8	0,-	4-	Ę, 1	-2	ę	က်
	ন	ł	0	0	١	ţ-	-	0	τ-	ή -	-	0	С	5	-		0
	11	١	-	લ	0	ş	-	=	~	11	~	7 (С	7 (η	0	0
	ĿIJ	ī	0			7	0	5	41-	ሳና	2	0	D I	- 0	אנ		
	D	O		-1844	б	_	-	0	0	09	8	00	بر	_	0	-	0
ned.	ບ	T	ο		7	0	ო	0	- T	ഗര	>	00	າ		-	જ	0
Surtic	Ф	ł	0	0	-	1		0	പ്പ	୶୳	8	٩	<u>-</u> 2	Û	ׂ דָ	0	-
<u>ن</u>	A		-	-	0			ہ۔	0	ς Υ	5	-	0	0	Ŧ	0	0
ole 7		hw-x	بسالمند	hu-x	futrace	huj-x	fullface	۲-My	full Pace	-10.4	สายมาย	א-שיון	kultaie	hਾਹ-x	fulkic	x-tay	nilface
10 I		ንማህ	0. smii	זרומיז	אינאיה.או	Josti	D- JMil	ing v	ונמיצי גי	וכה	uld	Jury	ומאים	shak	'antroj	atro	أمايسك

ц

$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Judgment Discrepancies for "Thu	EFGHJKLMNOPQT	1 3 1 1 2 -2 -2 3 1 0 -1 -2 1.80 4 0 - 2 0 0 0 2 -1 1 0 0 1.33	2 -3 2 - 0 -2 0 0 - 0 - 1 -2 1.13 1 2 -2 0 2 0 - 0 - 0 1.09	2 - 0 0 2 2 0 2 1.00	3 - 4 0 0 & 7 - 2 14 2 - 1 7 - 2 3.50 0 - 4 - 1 - 3 - 0 - 4 - 1 0 - 1 0 3.69	23 -35 -37 0 10 -2 -2 -32 0 0 -36 0 11.00 2 32 1 0 - 0 -1 0 -3 -2 - 0 2.79	0 1 3 -4 14 0 0 0 1 0 -6 - 2.58 - 13 0 - 0 0 0 0 0 0 1.63		3 1 1 0 3 0 5 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 33 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Jud	1	9 90	0 ez	90 10	र्थ इ.न	रू ८ ल न	01	00	10-
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		Y N	90 90	بي ہ ماني	04 40	999) T -	0 i 0	00	10	07 M-
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		ц Г	- R	- ex	0-	-0 ±0	0	1.1	70	01
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		Ŀ.	0 M	ς, I	9-	q -	છે. છેલું છેલું	- 13 -		
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		0	- q		01	いた	00	1		
$\frac{3}{2}$ $\sqrt{10}$ $$ 100 $0 -00$ 10 10	nt is ued	6 C		%। 01	T 0	0-	6 89 9 0 9	11	90 - 1	09
	J. Cor	A	। ৩ - ४		108	0-	- 68	-0	01	10

.

		B	ced.	A	ίυ/	LL I	ণ্দ	Т	5	moby	- Indi	M	s par	icies.	p p	Hou	Se".
	00	00	ഒഠ		01	ņΤ	- 1	5 1 1 1 1	やめ	०७	0 -	01	, ,	- v	70	T T .	0.86 1.08
00	•	9		0 G	00	40	3 2		17	- -	00	00	<u>ې</u> _	T -	ç. O		2,00 1.07
	-	1 +	ςio	1 4		လုံလို	T 1	ıې	чů	70	00	00	-9-	00.	07		1.50 1.23
0-		ଜ୦	<i>с</i> о	∞	07	$\Gamma \zeta$	S-	7	ကံလံ	ಭಧಾ	0 -	1 -	00	cio -	70	70	2.73 1.31
0 -	· ·		97-07-	= +	11-180	31	ર્ <u>ણ</u> છ	8-	91- 19	ર્જ છું		ທຜ	53	3%	-13	37 -	18.50 5.75
က္ဂ		01	F0	<u>9</u> 1	٩ <u>-</u> -	t 0	_t	00 1.0	51	1-	10	90	10	0 KO	ώœ	10	6.85 1.27
00	I	01	બ બ	9-	0a	Г, —	- 0	- 1	-0	ē 0	νο O	ଜ	15	14	ल 0	! 0	3.40 0.55
0-	1	1+1	+++	0-	၀ ကို	90	୶୦		70	я_	çφη	ティ	- 1	ا ه	कुक	-0	1.8.1

~	tole 7	Ge	بالمرن	ued.						Judg	ment	Dist	repo	ncie	s tot	ېې بې	al "	
		Æ	Ð	છ	P	ш	Ŀ	ণ্ট	I	η	¥	د	٤	2	0	д	Q	For Sudy
1.XI	101-X	0	Ś	T	လု			ςŅ	ୠ	T	-	-	ন	Ϋ́	0	T	0	1 56
Damii	عتيالهد	-	و.	ş	0	-	რ	1	ო	7	Ô	ŝ	0	ო	ψ	3		1.93
meducleus	א-עיא א-גיע	TO	15		- രൂ	0 T	જે જે	Ŷ-	0 _	OT	00	cro -	00	120	TT	- -	00	ار.01 ا.0(
me Clesce The	x-my militice	01	07		11	0-	00	111		-0	-0	1 -	-0	v -	09	56-	00	0.2 ପ୍ଟାର
נרוריון הי להתואו	x-my	05	0-0	10	୦ଙ୍		0 നു	v -	or 1	07	07	m-	07	1-	00	- 0	00	0.86
אטינה א	X-ray tullface	् भ त	-13		t m	97	50	07	700		୦ଙ୍	05	7 9	00	95	- 0	- M	3.94 4.75
Orthe But 1		00	<u>ସ</u> ୍ଥ –	ej 1.	- 50	- 1	- 2	mt-	29	- O	୶୶	vt	0.0	5 00	-9 t.	0 7	3-	4.75 3.63
arne the pite	K-my	- 6	et	a 0	- 0	すら	<i>.</i>	0-	- G		10	70	÷	67 68	70	୶ –	1 -	1.69
TURE AL ALAYANI	K-row		0		00		70			-9	00	-m		- -	00	1	01	0.67 1.07

--

13

" SSC	Q Tryeoude	-3 1.36	-3 1.06	-3 1.19 -2	-2 1:79 -2 1:50	-1 2 29 -2 2 5.63	13 7,50 -1 5,13	6 5.17 0 2.67	- 1.31 & 2.53	- 1.157 - 1.15
or "G	0 0	نۍ 0	୦ ଜ	00	77	8 6 9 -	t v - t	୍ ୧୦୦୨ ୧୦୦୨	-2 -1 -6	พด -0
cies P	S	Ŷ	٩	۾ م	νþ	γγ.	35	8 –	9	0 -
crepan	٤	0	0	00 2	-0	1 -	ર્યું તું અન્ય	91	11	TI
it Dis	ר ע	ہ۔ م	1	00 190		-9 % 0 G	- ? + ~		0	0- 07
ramopr	Þ	0	0	လုံလုံ	ώŅ	9°0	ەم	- 9	00	79
ら	H F	0	0	00	ano L t	က္ – တ –	- 0 4	44	ი ი თ	t n
	С Ц	-	0	- C-	φ φ .		55	- °	- 0	00
	м	S.	0		00	90	ર્ણ =	N. C.		ର ୩
ba	A	ଷ	ŝ		11	00	νn	1-9	- 5	70
ntinui	ව ව		7	- U - + O	-0	۲0 ف	80 80 80	-0	0 4 1	-0
çõ	A I	0	0	10	0 -	و ٢	สก	ۍ ۲- مړ		
able 7		hour 5	Fullface	kulliber	anti-x-	in the second	ridee	myllint 200	the short	Mark Com
۲.	l		<u> </u>	1.10.2.1	1.00		1		1	

	199		9	(21)2	×0 ==	- t-	0-	+~	F- 8	Ţ
	Seiter	ī.	<u>ର</u> ଜ	1.20	0.5 0.7	9.0 8.0	14.5 5.2	3.0	9.H 9.H	α ο
Se.	ø	0	0	00	00	00	18-	T -	୶ଙ୍	01
Н 00	ç	-	T	-0	1 -	90	07	1 -	00	, 0
for	0		0	70	- ကိ .	10	હાર	4 7	લ છે	t 77
10 163	S	-	0	-0	-0	1	०७	N Q	ଜ୦	a –
repar	E	0	0	00	0 -		00	οŅ	0 T	7 m
Disc	د	Ţ	0	00	00	ТО	04	0 P	7 90	વ ૦
Men	¥	0	0	<i></i> ज़0	- n	10	6-01-	γo	7 0	00
Judg	5	0	0	SP T	07	0 -	5-13 14	-†-	07	0 -
	H	-		ଟ –	-00	19	ર્ <u>ન</u> તું	-99-	લે છે	<u>-</u> -
	ণ্ট	1	١	0 m	1	- 9	22	γ'n	59	うー
	Ч	ଜ	0	-0	Ta	00	91	ττ		
	ш	T	୶	ଜେମ	- 0	70	9	50	200	90
	0	0	0	જત	01	70	Τ-	ợ _	cz -	04
-ġ	ಲ	୶		70	00	500	TM	- (GX -
rucio	0	ł	1	10	1	1 ಳ	108	1-	10	, , ,
3	A	0	Q		10	0	5.05	TY	्रंत्	17
ole 7		he *	Fulford	K-ray	Fullface	t-muy	X-ray Allau	kulikat	x-roy hultad	x-rout
10		1550	Comi	200 Dudien	וואת כנצינך	Instantion)	Place	12 mproj	tone Shape	the superior

÷

APPENDIX D

Table	8.	Jul	rajudo	ge Di	scre	Danciès	(10	Scal	e Por	ints)	Between	the.
Mear	n X	ray	Judg	ment	and	Individ	inal	Full	Face	Judo	yments.	••••

		Timic Onse	2- t	Tim	ne- deus	Tim Offs	e- set	Trans Spece	sition d	Plac	e	Tong	ue	Tong	ue	Tongi Eleva	ue tion
L		Hullton	Indresson Fulltace	19 session tultitut	- Hullian	litressiv	William tullion	list seision fulltale	Interestion the literation	Istypsing tullface	hillique	Istsicsion Hulltace	Ind survey	Ist services	Lodys	stream -	2 alyesin fulliou
	A	NR	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.16	1.16	0.56	0.44	2.31	3.31	4.03	1.03	0.50	0:50	0.50	0.50
	B	3.00	3.00	0.00	0.00	NR	1.16	2.44	Q.44	D.69	3.69	0.03	5.03	150	1.50	2.50	3.50
	C	1.00	2.00	00.0	0.00	0.84	1.16	0.44	1.44	5.31	5.31	2.97	0.97	1.50	1.50	0.50	1.50
	\mathcal{C}	2.00	2.00	0.00	1.00	NR	0.16	244	NR	5.31	7.31	2.97	2.97	1.50	1.50	1.50	0.50
ļ	E	2.00	2.00	0.00	1.00	284	0.84	2.44	0.56	0.69	2.31	.03	1.03	1.50	1.50	0.50	0.50
	F	0.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.16	0.16	14.56	Ì.44	4.69	2.31	1.03	NR	2.50	2.50	0.50	<i>Q</i> .50
	G	1.00	2.00	1.00	3.00	NR	1.84	1.44	J.44	6.69	1.31	3.03	3.03	0.50	0.50	1.50	0.50
	H	NR	3.00	1.00	1.00	1.16	0.84	2.44	1.44	1.31	5.69	2.03	2.03	0.50	0.50	0.50	050
	5	200	1.00	0.00	2.00	0.16	0.84	0.44	1.44	0.31	1.69	2.03	3.03	0.50	1.50	0.50	1.50
2	K	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.16	0.16	0.44	044	4.69	5.69	0.03	4.03	0.50	1.50	NR	0.50
ု ၀ ပ	L	2.00	2.00	0.00	0.00	0.16	0.16	2.44	0.44	0.31	0.31	NR	3.97	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50
	M	0.00	1.00	0.00	0.00	0.16	0.16	1.44	0.44	0.3/	5.69	5.97	J.97	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50
	N	2.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	1.16	0.16	0.44	0.44	1.31	0,31	2.97	0.03	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50
	0	1.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.16	0.84	0.56	O.UJ	9.31	1.69	4.97	5.97	0.50	1.50	0.50	0.50
	ρ	1.00	1.00	0.00	0.00	1.16	0.16	1.44	0.56	3.31	369	5.97	2.03	0.50	0.50	0.50	0.50
þ	Q	1.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.16	0.16	1.44	<u>0.44</u>	0.31	1.31	1.03	<u></u>	INR	IUR	050	IUR_
4-11	w 7	4.	00	4.	00	3.	84	4.	<u>44</u>	31.6	<u>9</u>	$\frac{7.0}{0.71}$	22	3.0	50	4.5	$\frac{10}{10}$
(dis	C Q DAY	11.29	1.31	0.25	0.63	0.60	0.68	2.21	0.99	<i>Q.Y3</i>	3.23	2.14	0.14	0.97	1.20	085	1.05
	A	2.06	1.06	1.84	1.84	NR	1.28	2.02	10.98	2.03	26.03	NR	NR	INR	IUR	2.41	NR
	B	3.06	2.06	1.84	284	0.28	1.72	14.98	4.02	26.03	17.03	6.53	37.53	0.18	0.22	1.54	0.59
	e	0.94	3.06	1.84	0.84	0.72	0.72	13.98	0.98	23.03	851.03	NR	IUK	0.99	U, 18	0.41	8.UF
	D	1.06	2.06	0.16	1.84	NR	0.72	1.02	0.98	17.97	21.08	053	8.4.7	4.02	1.18	1.41	2.41
	E	1.94	1.94	2.16	9.16	0.28	1.72	1.98	1.02	28.03	26.03	10.53	4.53	1.29	1.22	1.54	0.54
1	IF	0.94	0.06	1.16	0.16	0.72	1.28	2.02	2.42	1.03	\$5.03	1.41	653	1.99	1.32	1.57	- 1.41 - ∩<7
	ß	INK	1.94	0.16	2.16	IVR	3.36 0.20	12.48	14,98	14.05	୫.୦୪	6.41	3.41	10:18	0.78	0.54	1<9
	H	2.06	2.06	0.84	2.84	228	9.98	11.98	3.02	122.03	18.05	6.47	4.41	IVR	0.32	1.41	പപ
	1	1.06	1.06	0.16	0.16	0.28	1.98	1.0%	10.48	14.01	NE	4.47	5.41	0.78	0.78	1.54	2.41
E	K	1.06	0.06	0.16	0.16	0.28	0.28	0.02	1.02	1.41	21.00	441	IUR	0.16	2.18	254	1.54
D L		1.94	2.06	0.16	184	0.28	2.28	0.48	10.98	21.03	22.02	3.41	- 6. <i>41</i> - MO	1.22	1.10		0.41
	M	12:06	0.06	0.16	0.16	0.28	0.28	0.0%	11.18	4.03	6/5.05	IUK		0.18	0.18	1.41	0.41
	IN	1.94	1.44	2.16	2.16	228	1.12	1.48	0.0	1.05	30.05	2.54	10K 00	0.56	0.70	13.59	1.07 i n K
	0	0.94	0.06	0.16	0.16	1.28	0.28	0.98	1.02	7.4/	2103	1.54	- 10 K	. 0.18	207	1001	0.57
	16	0.94	0.94	1.16	0.16	0.28	1.40	0.48	3.02 (1)	070	1.05	2.47	~#41 01.7	Tidd	532	011	0.47 ND
		10.44	<u>1.06</u>	116	8/1	$\frac{1}{1}$	<u>1.26</u> 08	<u>18</u>	<u>2.02</u> 09	1.05	02	IVIC	<u>-2.4.1</u> 1.7	10.18	76	2.41	1.1
1		. H.	6	1 0	J.	, <i>µ</i> ., ,	o¥0	1 2.	UCL	1 01.	$\mathbf{v}\mathbf{v}$.	I Ч.	u I	1 H.	7.8	1 .).	u i
X-4		102	12/1	0.49	1.27	077	1 99	1, 21.	Sm	19.20	90,00	1. 11.	770	1.17	170		111

Table 8. Continued.

		Tim	e -	Tim	e- Ieus	Time	- +	Trans spe	ution cd	Plac	ie	Tung	ue t	Tong. sha	Le pe.	rong	ue
		list system list fuce	Halser.	1strasio	Jal som	hitsissin Hilltace	Salami 1 Hilling	intrassion.	Inducer Hillforce	hillituce	Interior hulliage	14230	Interes .	1st 2 asion	9. J. ca - 1	Julian S	Hull tace
	A	0,34	1.34	0.03	0.03	0.78	0.22	3.41	3.41	4,20	1,26	4.41	4.41	0.93	0.07	1.16	1.16
	5	0.34	0,34	0.97	0.03	NR	0.20	1.41	3.41	1.80	0.20	10.59	3.41	1.93	2.07	2.16	3.16
	0	1.66	1.66	0.97	0.03	1.78	1.22	4.4	5.41	4,20	1,20	3.41	0.41	2.01	1.07	0.16	0.16
	2	1.66	0.66	1.03	1.97	1.78	0.78	5.41	5.41	.3.80	1.80	1.59	0.41	2.01	2.07	3.16	3.16
		1.66	1.66	0,03	0.47	1.78	1.78	8.59	/47 کې	2.20	5,20	4.41	4.4/	0.07	1.93	1.16	0.16
		2.66	1.66	1.03	1.03	1,78	0.78	8.59	9.59	5.20	1.80	3.41	3.41	4.93	1.93	2.16	2.16
1	G	0.66	0.66	NR	0.03	2.22	1.22	4.41	2.39	3,20	4.20	3:41	3.41	1.07	0.07	1.16	1.16
	H	2.34	0.34	0.97	0.03	1.22	0.22	UK	9.39	3.20	1.20	0.59	3.4/	0.93	1.07	0.16	3.16
	1	2.66	2.34	0.03	1.97	0.33	0.23	7.59	3.41	3.20	J:20	3.34	3.41	0.07	2.07	1.16	2.16
4	$\left[n \right]$	0.34	0.34	0.03	0.03	0.22	0.33	4.41	3.41	6.30	3,20	7.4/	0.41	1.07	1.07	0,84	0.84
3		1.66	2.34	0.03	0.03	1.78	0.22	5.41	3.41	1.20	1.20	3.41	1.59	0.07	2.07	1.16	0.16
1	10.1	1.66	0,34	0.03	0.03	1.78	0.22	3.41	3.09	0.80	4.26	0.41	0.39	0.07	0.93	1.16	1.16
	N	2.66	0.34	1.03	0.03	0.23	0.22	6.41	1.39	2.20	5.20	2.59	4.41	3.93	1.07	0.16	0.84
	Q.	1.66	Q.34	0.03	0.03	2.22	5.35	1.59	2.59	0.30	6.26	3.41	1.4/	0,93	1.07	1.16	2.16
l l	10	1.34	0,34	1.97	0.03	1.78	0.78	4.41	2.39	4.20	NR	0.39	3.41	1.93	0.07	1.16	2.16 NO
1		1.66	<u>0.666</u>	2.03	1.03	1.72	0.18	<u>,,,,,</u>	<u></u>	24	20	G	<u></u>	10,43	7145	0.10	
Xdi	raa	1 5%	0.66	7.	0.5	1.47	0.2/	4 40	4.63	2.48	<u></u>	3.68	2.81	1.5%	1.66	1.14	1.58
	T _A	10.00	0.70		<u> </u>	10-1×			11.10	17 20	<u> </u>	NR	ALD.	11	NR	1.50	
		2.64	0,31	00	0.81	0.16	0.16	10.14	1417	1,80	0,00		101	0.13	NIR	1.37	018
	C	2.67	1.32	NO	0.76	A 241	0.94	7.81	3.81	8.30	0.80	0.0	101	0.43	0.4.3	1.40	0.43
	5	0.32	1,32	0.10	0.13	0.0	0.07	ره د در مر د را	1.81	4.80	6.20	an	11.20	0.43	1.43	1.53	2.52
	E	0.33	1.67	0.18	1.10	1 84	1 24	0.21	0.8/	8.20	6.80	NR	10.80		7 1.57	0.10	1.52
	L L	4.34	1.67	0.0	1.18	0.1	0 24	3 31	281	18 70	40.00	9.80	3.20	2.57	1.43	2.53	21.52
	0	1,37	010	NUR NG	5.12	10.16	216	10.01	0.87	1.20	2 2	7.80	NR	0.43	NR	2.4	AN B
		12.69		1012	7.16 D 18	2 11	11/.	10.10	6.10	286	7.20	4.20	NR	910	NR	1.12	NR
	17	0.32	0.37	212	0000 2002	1 84	2.1/2	10.17	5 /0	42.20	- NB	010	1.80	0.57	0.51	2.57	1.52
	ι ^κ	0.32	0.30	0.18	0.10	0.16	016	2.81	2 21	16 80	1.20	NR	NR	2.5	7 :2	1.57	2.57
18		2 2 2	0.37		2.12	1 84	1.24	1.3.14	1.3.10	6.20	7.80	SIN C	1.80	0.5	7 0.57	0-43	3 1.43
	m	120	0 30	0.10	012	and	0.16	2.21	1116	6.80	1100	9/10	NR	91A	2.43	MR	1.57
F		2 27	0.02	1.12	2.12	2 84	016 1.15 (1	0.10	1417	6 20	C 20		nip	1.52	・ ・ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	0.5	2102
	6	0.40	0.2	0.12	0.12	0.34	0.16	10.19	2.21	6.80	7.00	100	n vi Gi n	010	0.5	9/10	2.412
	0	0.32	0.3	900	0.10	0.24	1 1 1/2	1.21	- 101 	0.0	7 90	ane	ann ar	IUR	ر ۲۰۰۵ مربر از ا		7 1.50
	6	1.32	1.30	1.12	1.12	0.24	0.24	1.81	1.21	5.8C	د. در 21. کې (SINR	NA	0.5	7 0.5	20.4	3 9.43
X·r	nyΧ	3.	69	3.21		4	16	4.	81	10	. 80	12	. 80	4		.3	.57
хJ	eap	w 1.46	1.06	1.03	0.83	1.36	1.03	5.40	: 4.74	19.61	8.98	8 7.00	6.00	3 1.14	1.2	7 1.5	3 1,60

78

Table 8. Continued.

		Tim	e - e +	Tim	e-leus	Tim	e - .et	Tran Spec	sition d	Plac	.و	10ng Part	ine	Tone	nie be	Tung Elevit	ile Ition
L		tullace	bid 202 hull face	listispice of tull-ace	and is tull nu	1st sos millique	3.v14.4 11.11.16.4	1555555	tulliau	TELLIQUE .	and seas	tirsess 1 Tull-time	hill an	istiess i	fulline	arsess 2	ullfau
	A	1.22	0,92	162	1.62	100	NR	0,440	D54	26.44	25.44	IVR	NR	NR	NR	2.97	197
	в	1 22	1.22	NR	2.62	1.00	3.00	3.46	3.46	11.44	23.144	8.88	NR	207	NR	1.97	NR
	C	0.92	0.22	0.35	138	1.00	1.00	1.54	1.54	22.44	24.44	NR	NR	0.07	1.93	9.03	1.97
	D	222	1.22	2.12	262	NR	2.00	2.54	1.54	27.44	ЗШ	NR	3.12	0.93	0.07	2.97	1.97
	Ē	NR	0.92	0.38	0.38	100	0.00	0.54	154	24 44	2756	688	7.88	0.93	107	0.03	1.97
	F	0.78	0.22	2.35	0.62	200	1.00	6.46	0.54	33.44	3244	10.12	6.12	2.93	1.93	1.97	1.97
	G	NR	0.78	0.62	238	r JR	2.00	1.46	O.Шo	35.44	2244	NR	582	0.93	0.93	1.03	1.03
	H	022	2 22	1.62	262	100	300	0,54	1.54	26.44	2544	NR	NR	5.07	NR	1.97	NR
Ŷ	J	0.78	102	238	162	1.00	200	1.46	154	2644	2444	NR	8.12	0.73	0.93	1.97	1.97
Õ	κ	2.78	0.78	162	0.62	1.00	100	2.46	0.46	Pla life	26.14	IUR	10.12	293	293	1.97	0.97
1-1	L	0.22	078	0.38	0.38	0.00	0.00	0.54	0.46	27.44	26.44	NR	NR	0.93	0.93	1.97	1.03
	Μ	0.78	NR	0.38	0.38	0.00	D.00	0.416	1.46	25.44	23.64	NR	BR	NR	1.07	NR	1.97
	N	1.78	0.78	0.62	0.35	1.00	0.00	0.46	0.46	27.44	27.44	NR	NR	NR	2.93	NR	1.97
	0	1.78	0,22	0.63	280	100	100	0.46	0.54	TUL	2014	NR.	NR	NR	0.93	NR	1.03
	0	1.78	178	0.38	0.38	1.00	0.00	0.46	2.46	36.44	27.44	10.12	1.12	1.73	193	0.03	1.97
	Q	1.78	0.78	138	0.38	1.00	0.00	046	0.410	36 64	2544	NR	NR	0.73	0.73	1.03	103
x-n	uy X	3. 22		3.62		4.00		10.	54	35.	44	12.	12	4.	<u>93</u>	3.	97
хġз	max,	1.26	0.84	116	117	0.93	1.07	1.48	119	25.56	<u>ર્ઝ 3ક</u>	9.00	6100	1.71	1.42	169	1.63
1	A	259	159	2.50	250	1.78	NB	6.12	0.88	5.31	261	3.72	0.72	0,01	1.97	0.35	0.65
	B	259	3.41	250	<i>9</i> 50	1.78	\$ 78	12 88	312	4.67	831	2.72	172	1.01	2.99	1.65	NR
1	0	1.61	0.59	0.50	150	0.78	0,22	0.88	0.88	8.69	o∕.b1	1.28	6.72	1.D1	1.01	0.35	1.35
	G	1.59	159	050	1.50	NR	1.22	0.12	1.83	1.69	5.67	2.71	alac	1.44	1.99	2.35	0.6హ
1	E	0.59	1.59	0.50	1.50	0.78	172	0.88	1.88	169	0.69	3.72	2.72	1.01	0.97	1.35	\$ 35
	F	1.59	1.41	1.50	0.50	1.22	1:22	0.83	1.12	731	1.67	1.98	37.)	0.99	1.01	235	<i>ે</i> 3ડ
}	G	NR	0.41	0.50	150	NR	। ମଧ	0.12	1.12	7.31	1.31	15.72	372	0.99	0.0/	135	0.35
	H	0.59	2.41	1.50	0.50	0.78	0.22	0.88	NC	7.31	5.31	3.28	972	0.99	1.01	335	\$7.35
	12	0.41	0.59	0.50	0.50	0,92	0.72	1.12	QI2	0.31	1.31	372	372	0.01	0.77	0.35	235
5	K	0.41	0.41	0.50	0.50	0.22	0.92	0.12	D88	331	5.31	6.72	472	1.99	1.99	0.35	0.33
l õ	12	241	0.59	0.50	0.50	1.22	030	1.19	0.12	5.31	1.69	2.72	0.88	0.11	0.77	1. 35	0,6
10'	M	0.41	0.41	0.50	02.G	0.22	C.S.S.	10.12	0.88	0.69	7 1.31	1.28	1.98	0.01	0.41	1.35	0.35
	N	0.59	1.41	0.50	0.50	0.78	0.99	1.88	0.85	731	0.69	5.72	I.IS	1.99	100	235	1.35
		9.41	0.59	1.50	0.50	1.22	0.78	0.12	0.12	5.69	1.31	1928	0.75	19	1 1.99	10.65	0.6
	IX.		- 244	10 < 0	150	IN DD	1.23	1112	112	1169	- 1.37	11.72	0 70	10.99	0,0	11.35	O.S
	P	0.59	~ 41	0.30		A			~~~~	1.	-			1	-		A 1/
	10 10	0.59	0.41	0.30	0.50	0.02	<u>0.</u>	0.12	0.12	1.159	469	272	3.72	1.01	2.0	1.35	NA
X 4	P Q ayX	0.59 141 3	<u>0.4/</u> 59	<u>0.30</u> <u>0.50</u> <u>3</u>	<u> </u>	<u>0.02</u> 3.	0.Q. 78	0.12 3	0.12 88	1.69	469	272 8.	3.72 72	1.01 3	<u>2.0</u> 99	1.35	NF 35

,

Table 8. Continued.

		Time	2 - et	Tim	e- eus	Time	:- :+	Transi Spec	tion zd	Plac	e	Tong	ue t	Tona	pe	Tungi eleva	tion
		Istración tullfine	Julision	158524200. Full Fr. ci	Indresso Millinge	Harassian Hill fine	Stalsstein Hilliece	Historium	Unhusion Fullhace	litrice.	Julian -	hill take	John and Hidlbace	list series Hill face	Adam Palar	har and	Jalvans Fulltace
	A	1.12	1.72	2.34	2.34	3.16	2.16	0.86	6.80	3.69	2.3/	4.35	2.35	0,03	0.97	2.25	1.25
	B	2.72	2.12	2.34	2.34	NR	3.16	2.26	2.26	8.69	0.3/	5.35	4.35	1.97	0.97	0.25	NR
	C	1-28	0,28	0.34	0.66	0.84	0.84	1.80	0.21	3.69	1.69	6.3.5	6.35	1.03	0.97	0.25'	0.75
	\mathbb{D}	2.72	0.28	2,34	1.34	NR	1.84	0.2/	2.80	1.69	1.3/	3.30'	2.65	7.03	0.03	1.75	1.75
	E	1.72	1.72	0.34	1.34	1.84	1.84	1.2/	1.21	2.69	2.3/	5.35	2.35	2.03	1.03	1.75	1.25
	F	0.72	0.7 . 7	1.66	0.34	0,84	0.84	0.80	0.21	8.69	23,3/	3.35	6.35	1.97	1.97	0.75	0.25
ľ	G	NR	NR	1,34	1.34	1.84	2.16	1.80	0.80	1.69	5:69	2.65	6.30	0.97	0,03	025	0.25
	H	2.12	2.72	1,34	1.34	2.16	2.16	1.21	0.2/	0.69	0.69	0.65	3,35	1.03	1.03	1.75	2.25
SS	5	0,28	0,28	3.66	0.66	2.84	2.16	0,80	0.80	1.69	0.3/	2.35	4.35	0.03	0.03	1.75	0.25
0	K	1.28	0.38	1.34	1.34	2.16	2.16	1.80	6.21	3.3/	5.69	2.35	1.35	6.03	0.97	2,25	1.25
Ø	L	0.28	0.72	0.66	2.66	1.84	1.84	0,80	2.80	0.31	2.69	7.35	6.35	0.97	1.97	0.75	1.25
	M	0.28	0.38	0.66	0.66	0.16	0.16	0,80	1.80	7.31	5.31	NR	3.65	WR	0.03	IVR	0.25
	N	3.28	2.72	3.66	2.34	2.84	3.16	2.80	2.2/	9.3/	12.31	8.65	9.65	1.03	0.97	0.25	0.7.51
	0	1.72	0.28	0,34	0.66	0.16	2.16	9.80	0,86	1.69	J.6 9	1.35	0.60	0.97	1.97	2.25	2.25
	P	1.28	1.28	1.66	1.66	1.16	2.16	0.2/	1.21	0.69	3,3/	0.65	4.35	6.03	0,03	0.75	1.20
	NW V	2.28	0.72	2.66	0.66	1.84	0,16	1.80	0,21	2.31	1.31	6.35	3.65	0.03	8.03	0.25	\overline{mk}
	uy X	3.72		3.34		4.	16	10.	<u>]</u>	31.	69	8.	35	3.9	17	3.	7.5-
<u>ka</u>	A PIC	1.62	1.14	1.67	1.36	1.67	1.81	1.24	1.94	4.01	4,45	4.03	4.26	3.08	1.31	1.18	1.//
	A	0.06	0.06	0.19	1,19	0.16	0.16	0.23	1.23	1.8.3	10.17	6.44	1,44	0.46	2.46	10.08	1.08 MA
	6	2.06	IUR	2.81	0.19	IUR	1.16	3.23	0,23	0.15	14.00	2.44	3.44 (1)	12.57	2.54	0.08	101
	C	0.94	0.06	0.19	0.19	0.16	0.16	1.77	0,13	9.17	0417	4.56	10K	2.4	ي جري ايمر ا	2 43	0.00
1	D	2.06	2.06	9.14	0.6/	IUK	0.16	0.55	1.77	3.17	1100	7.00	1.50	7 11	0.04	2143	2 42
		0.06	2.06	1.19	1.81	1.11		0.77	0.77	10.83	910 910		12.44	1.70	م مرکز ا		0.00
ļ	Ir.	1.06	1.06	1.14	1.1Y	100	0.s7		1.43	3.11	2 02	10.77	ידיוג 44.ת ו	0.01			0.43
	G	TUR	1.06	0.77	0.19		0.16	0.72	1007	0.73	10.1	רדיפן ענג לא	2.42	6.46	1.0	10.50	0.4.3
	IT IT	0.06	0.17	0.19	1.10	0.16	~ 04	0.00	··//	12.02	0.03	0.74	0.44	0.40	0	10.00	0.43
0		0.06	0.06	6.19	0.10	0.16	1.16	0.77	0.43	7.03	7.17	2.00	2.51	1.54	, 0.0 1	10.43	20.43
0 V	1	0.06	0.06	0.10	0.19	0.16	0.16	0.00	0.23	207	0.93	0.56	3.56	0.54	4 2.5	41.43	1.43
5		0.06	0.06	10.0	0.19	0.16	1.16	0.22	172	793	783	1 A 44	0.44	0.46	0.52	1.43	0.4.3
1		0.06	0.04	0.19	0.0	0.16	0.11	0.00	1.20	2.92	1.00	2.50	4.44	12.00	ປາມ	0.43	1.43
1		0.06	0.00	0.10	0.19	0.11	1.94	0.77	0,00	0.00	2011 0200	12.11	0.5	2.12	1 0.4	13.49	بند.
		0.06	0.00	0.19	0.10	0.16	1.16	0.20	0.23	22.23		100	1000	10.54	1 0.1	40.43	0.43
	12	0.04	0.0/	0.19	0.19	0.1/-	0.16	0.23	0.02	10.93	10.83 7 9 9	21.21	רדינט ד ליגים	1.41.	, 0.4	11.44	RUL
X-a	<u>.4x</u>	4	06	4	19	3.	24	10	- <u></u>	19			1.56	.7	<u></u> ,5'4/	2	
XJ	requi	0.01	0.52	0.60	0.03	0.24	0.77	0.24	0.68	7.6	6.0	9 3.76	2.90	2.00	1.3	4 1.22	0.84